# AssetW**O**RKS

Jump Start Guide

M5 System Management Overview

Version 24.x Last Modified 24.0 | March 2024 © 2024 AssetWorks Inc., its subsidiaries and affiliates. All rights reserved.

Private and Confidential. Not for public dissemination.

Information contained in this document is proprietary to AssetWorks Inc. and may be used or disclosed only with written permission from AssetWorks Inc. This guide, or any part thereof, may not be reproduced without the prior written permission of AssetWorks Inc. This document refers to numerous products by their trade names. In most, if not all, cases these designations are claimed as Trademarks or Registered Trademarks by their respective companies. This document and the related software described in this manual are supplied under license or nondisclosure agreement and may be used or copied only in accordance with the terms of the agreement. The information in this document is subject to change without notice and does not represent a commitment on the part of AssetWorks Inc. The names of companies and individuals used in the sample database and in examples in the manuals are fictitious and are intended to illustrate the use of the software. Any resemblance to actual companies or individuals, whether past or present, is purely coincidental.

#### **Technical Support**

AssetWorks provides several ways to connect with the Customer Support team. Be prepared to provide detailed information to the representative. If you are reporting an issue by email, include screen shots of your problem. This will provide the Customer Support representative with the information needed to respond quickly and effectively.

Customer Support is available Monday through Friday, 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., Eastern Time.

Telephone: 1-610-225-8300

Email: M5Support@AssetWorks.com

Website: https://community.assetworks.com/hc/en-us

The support website can be used to open issues, subscribe to user groups and download documentation, as well as to access the latest AssetWorks news. For secure access to the website, contact Customer Support by calling the number above.

# Jump Start Guide - M5 System Management Overview

Version 24.x

Last Modified 24.0 | March 2024

#### Contents

System Management Overview	9
Planning Your M5 System	
Implementation Strategies	
Define Current Business Procedures	
Develop Future Business Procedures	
Questions to Ask Yourself about M5 System Data Setup	
Configuring the M5 Application	
Asset Management	
M5 Asset Classification Terminology	
Asset Classification Codes	20
Asset Class Codes	
Asset Types	
Asset Type Group Maintenance	
Asset Category Main	
Category Equipment Options	
Tech Spec Main	
Manufacturer/Make/Model	
Tech Spec Items	
Activity Codes	
MCC Main	
User Class Codes	
Billing Codes	
Operational Class Codes	
Unit Main	

	Purchasing Contracts	3
	Price Types6	4
	Shipment Terms	4
	Purchase Order Items	5
	Requisition Reject Reasons	5
	Part Failure Codes	6
	Variance Reason	7
	Season Codes	8
	Cost Category Codes	9
	Part Kits7	<b>'</b> 0
Р	hysical Inventory Setup7	' <b>1</b>
	Part Inventory Parameters	<b>'1</b>
	Cycle Count Codes7	<b>'3</b>
	ABC Class Codes7	<b>'4</b>
	Inventory Adjustment Reasons7	′5
V	Vork Order Management	'6
	Work Order Visit Reasons	<b>'</b> 6
	Work Accomplished Codes	7
	System Codes	0
	System/Components	<b>;1</b>
	Job Status Codes	32
	Job Reasons	4
	Parking Spots	5
	Employee Groups	6
	Repeat Repairs	57
	Position Codes	8
	Symptom Codes	:9
	Symptom Asset Class	0
	Request Source9	1
	Source Symptom Maintenance9	1
	System Positions	12

	System/Component Positions	93
	Work Order Closed Reasons	94
	Claim Cancellation Code	95
	Claim Denied Codes	96
	Adjust Invoice Claim Reason	97
	Standard Job MCC	98
	Standard Job Tech Spec	99
	Standard Job Unit/Dept/Comp	100
	Telematic Fault Preferred Job	101
E	mployee Management	102
	Shift Maintenance	102
	Shift Break Maintenance	103
	Pay Classes and Steps	104
	Payroll Rates	105
	Payroll Time Types	106
	Time Type Matrix	107
	Labor Unions	108
	Employee Main	109
N	л5 General Use Codes	
	Locations	
	Location Main	
v	/endor Information	
v	Vendor Main	
	Vendor Service Codes	
	Equipment Types/SKU	
~		
υ	Department Information	
	Department Organization Hierarchy	
	Department Main	
A	Accounting Codes	117
	Direct Accounts	117
	Indirect Accounts	118

Markup and Tax Schemes
Markup Scheme
Markup Types
Тах Туре121
Tax Scheme
Email Address Maintenance
M5 System Administration 124
M5 System Settings
Fiscal Calendar
Holiday Calendar
Company Definition
System Flags
Item Master Definition128
Translation Maintenance129
State Codes
Time Interval131
Time Zones132
System Mask Maintenance133
M5 System Security 134
Role Maintenance
Location Groups
Operational Entity Groups
KPI/PMM Groups
Report Groups
Printer Groups
Adhoc Group Maintenance140
Adhoc Object Maintenance141
Department Groups 142
Menu Maintenance 143
Database User Maintenance
Application User Maintenance

	Department Access Function (DAF)	146
	Department Group/DAF Maintenance	147
	Frame Maintenance	148
A	Additional M5 Module Configurations	. 149
	Fuel Management	149
	Product Main	149
	Product Setup Location	150
	Product Setup Tank Types	151
	Product Setup Tanks	152
	Fuel Types	153
	GHG On Road Setting	154
	GHG Off Road Setting	155
B	Billing Module	. 156
	Billing Items	156
	Billing Item Source	157
	Department Billing Accounts	158
	Billing Unit Accounts	159
	Billing Closed Work Order Fees	160
	Billing Fixed Charges	161
٨	Motor Pool Management	. 162
	Motor Pool Rental Class	162
	Motor Pool Assign Unit	163
ι	Init Availability Module	. 164
	Availability Line Codes	164
	Availability Disposition Codes	165
	Availability Status Codes	166
	Availability Requirements	167
ι	Jpdates	. 168

# **System Management Overview**

Managing your M5 system is a very important job that takes time and careful consideration. Your organization may have several people who are responsible for setting up and maintaining codes, flags and other core system information. In many cases the people who are responsible for planning how your organization uses the M5 System are not the people who will actually use the system on a daily basis. It is important that there be a collaborative effort between all the groups involved to ensure a successful implementation. Regardless of who is responsible for managing your system, there are three basic steps for a successful implementation:

- Carefully Plan how you are going to use the M5 System.
- Build your database by loading existing tables and entering data manually.
- Verify your data thoroughly.

Administrative controls and management reporting capabilities will be determined by the amount of planning and communication put into developing your coding structures, business processes and reporting requirements. This manual is intended to lead you through the planning process and provide guidance for the decisions and development required for you to effectively implement your new M5 System.

# Planning Your M5 System

Prior to implementing your M5 System careful planning is required. Communicating with all parties involved to identify their business needs will be essential to your planning. A key part of the planning process is reviewing the structures of your data tables, the actual data that you plan to convert from other systems and the design of any new data tables you want to add.

The importance of your planning process cannot be overstated. M5 is a powerful and flexible system. AssetWorks staff is prepared to work closely with the members of your organization to ensure a successful implementation. We have developed proven strategies and activities that will help us reach that goal.

### **Implementation Strategies**

Implementing a Fleet Management system is a complex process. Before you begin investigating and planning how you want to use your new M5 System you should first do a careful examination of all your current business procedures. You will likely discover that many of them are performed without a full understanding of how they relate to other procedures. You will also find procedures that you would like to be able to perform differently or that you don't perform at all but would like to. This is your opportunity to explore all the possibilities and find room for growth and improvement.

### **Define Current Business Procedures**

The first step is to analyze and document your current business procedures. If you already have detailed documentation, this is a good opportunity to review it and update where necessary. Implementing any new system will impact the way you do business. The better you can define the details of your business processes, the easier it will be to identify changes and anticipate their impact. The information obtained during this process will be used to develop your M5 System business practices.

Suggested Activities:

 Organize an implementation committee dedicated to the success of this project from beginning to end. This committee is frequently referred to as your Key User Group and they will be responsible for the timely implementation of your system. The Key User Group should consist of members representing all areas of your organization. It should include managers responsible for your IT Support who manage your servers, databases, networks, software, or disaster recovery. It should also include Fleet Management, Shop Floor Management, Inventory Management plus Asset and Financial Management who oversee areas such as Billing, Accounts Payable and Warranty control. Build a team that efficiently covers the entire spectrum of your business. The complexity of your organization will determine the number of members but normally we see a minimum of five managers on this committee.

- Interview key department personnel inside the fleet organization and in the other areas
  of your business. Talk with anyone who receives or relies on reports or data from the
  fleet system. They may need to access the system directly as a user or through
  connectivity with another system or just indirectly through reports. Document their
  requirements in detail and build a wish list of what they'd like to have. Compare these
  lists from everyone interviewed and see if there are common needs or enhancements
  that can be added during the initial implementation of your M5 System.
- Visit facilities to observe the operations. Check your most current functional work flow documents against the reality of actual operations. You may discover that functionality has changed in unexpected ways. This evaluation should identify who is actually doing what task and which tasks might need to be reassigned, changed, or eliminated with the new M5 System.
- After your interviews and facility visits, update your current work flow documentation for each area. Confirm which ones are correct, which ones need changing and new ones that need to be created.
- Based on your document review, interviews and facility visits identify any business processes that you anticipate being affected by the M5 System implementation. Also make a separate list of processes that will not be affected by the M5 System.

# **Develop Future Business Procedures**

A review of your present business practices will assist you in determining how your business will look in the future. It will help you in determining how the practices will be handled using the M5 System application and what the critical issues of the implementation process will be.

Suggested Activities:

- Examine current practices and consider practices for the future.
- Compare present procedures to future procedures.
- Develop changes to your organization's procedural manual and forms.

Organize a training team to conduct end-user training and future train-the-trainers sessions. This team may consist of your key users, support personnel or other individuals chosen for their understanding of your Fleet's business practice. It will be important that they are willing to embrace the move to the new M5 System and have a good rapport with the staff they will be training and assisting.

### Questions to Ask Yourself about M5 System Data Setup

The M5 System frequently moves information from one area of the system to another to complete a process. Items such as user-defined codes and system flags enable you to control this functionality. You will discover that M5 is extremely flexible in allowing the user to define these types of codes, set the system flags, edit the names of frames and fields, and create lists for notification alerts, report recipients and more. So keep this in mind as you review the items below.

Here is a list of issues to consider as you're planning how your organization will use your new M5 System. As you consider these issues you should carefully document the decisions and conclusions you reach.

**Customize Menus** - How can you customize menus to speed up operations and to control user access? You can review any current system usage and document all functions that are used by individual user. You will use this documentation to compare the available frames in the M5 System to what your user community currently uses. As you compare frames between the two systems make sure that you don't omit any current functionality in the building of new menus in M5.

**User Access** - Which users will be assigned to which functions in the system? To assist with functionality assignment you will want to document not only what programs and reports each user currently can access but also the levels of authority you want to grant each user in the M5 System. The authority levels will determine the field security setup in the M5 System. Also review physical location access and determine how locations should be grouped in the setup of the M5 System. Review the printer setup in your current system so that similar printer groups can be created and assigned to users in the M5 System. The M5 System has two different user name components; an application user and a database user. The application user is assigned a database username through the Roles they are assigned. Depending on whether you are using Oracle or SQLServer the system administrator will provide this level of access.

**Repair Code Structure** - Will you use the ATA structure modified for your particular mix of equipment, systems, components, and parts or will you create your own repair code structure? M5 allows you to implement a new 3-character system code schema if desired. You need to review that issue and make a decision early in the implementation process. If you should decide to move to the 3-character schema, you also need to decide whether or not you will be converting your old data to the new system. If so then the historical data will need to be modified to include the new 3-character code. This is done by developing a translation table to perform the conversion but this is not part of the standard M5 System implementation package.

**Standard Jobs** - How will you define your standard job information for recurring or preventive maintenance (PM) work? If you currently do not use standard jobs for managing your PM program, this is an opportunity to do so. M5 incorporates a lot of functionality oriented towards efficient Preventive Maintenance. You may want to review your PM program now and take full advantage of M5's features. For instance you could add fuel as a criteria or remove usage.

**Technical Specifications** - Technical Specifications (tech spec) is a critical component used in identifying the units of your fleet. It is a code that defines the unit by Year, Manufacturer, Make and Model. Study it carefully and confirm that you understand its usage. After it is assigned you can group the units together by this code for analysis and management. In addition, the M5 System also employs a Category Code to further classify the tech specs and an asset class code that classifies categories into larger groups for aggregate reporting and management. To summarize, individual units are assigned Tech Specs Codes. Tech Specs can be grouped into Categories and Categories can be group into Asset Classes. M5 Version 15 includes a new high level of pre-classification called Unit Asset Type that allows other capital equipment such as accessories, trailers and tools to be assigned a Type code. Although it is required to be associated directly to a fleet unit it does allow for reporting by the Type designation, similar to

Asset Class and Category. You can perform management analysis on each level of these code classifications. Review the functions of the Asset Type, Category and Asset Class further to determine how it might be used by your organization.

**Maintenance Class Codes** - Another critical unit identification code is the Maintenance Class Code (MCC). M5 allows you to group your units by the meter type, the PM Schedule and the monthly usage. Now is a good time to review your current groupings of maintenance classes. MCCs are useful for tracking vehicle performance and maintenance costs for a particular class of units. Since maintenance is such a critical component make sure that your MCC groups will provide your management with the reports they need.

**Visit Reason Codes** - Every unit requiring maintenance in the shop requires a work order. Why are you opening this work order? Basically there are only two reasons a vehicle comes into a shop. It is there for a planned visit such as PM or it is there due to a breakdown that needs repair. Sometimes it is smart to perform minor repairs at the same time you are doing a PM, so your organization might want to show multiple visit reasons. But this Visit Reason Code should be thought of as the primary reason for the visit and work order. If the minor repair didn't warrant removing the unit from service and was only done since the unit was coming in for a PM, the visit reason shouldn't be coded as a repair. The details are better coded on each job or task.

Job Reason Codes - Each task on the work order is identified with a Job Reason code. So why is a particular task being added to a work order? Is it part of the planned maintenance? Was is a driver reported issue? Was it a planned upgrade to the unit? You can have as many reasons for adding a job as you wish to have. But as you consider this list of reasons, think about the reporting you need to see. Which of these reasons do you see frequently? Which ones are more important and which ones could be grouped together on a report?

**Work Accomplished Codes** - The Work Accomplished Codes (WAC) are used to define the type of work that will be done on units; what type of labor will be required. WAC codes are generally verbs describing actions such as repair, replace, tow, wash, inspect, or troubleshoot.

**Part Failure Codes -** The Part Failure (PF) codes are used describe the failure observed on the part when it's brought in for repair. If you are not already doing so, you may want to consider beginning to track why parts are failing in an effort to reduce the cost of operations. If so, what codes will you need to use to do so? Again, think about the reports you need, what can you use to prove to your parts provider or manufacturer that there is a problem with a product?

**Job Status Codes** - The Job Status codes are designed to help you capture the type of information you need to analyze the downtime on your units. The total amount of time the unit is the shop for a PM or repair will consist of actual time for labor and troubleshooting or it may be the time spent waiting on a part or tool to be delivered or a repair to be approved. Other job status codes may indicate that a unit has been sent for outside repair or that a job has been completed. These codes are very useful to the Shop Manager for controlling workflow through the shop.

**Disposal Reasons** - Eventually you will need to remove a unit from the fleet. The Disposal Reason codes are used to indicate why. Is it the normal end of life for the unit, is it damaged beyond repair, is it surplus equipment? Consider the full range of fiscal implications when creating and using these codes. This is capital equipment and the transactions are audited and must be justifiable.

**Modifying Closed Work Orders** - Why do you need to make an adjustment to a closed work order? It might even be from a prior billing period. M5 allows you to reopen a closed work order and enter a vendor correction, warranty adjustment to previous charges, core credit, or error found in accounting. Consider all the history you have on the need to do this and make a full list to create in M5.

**Labor Tracking** - How do you want to track and report labor charges? Employee time can be tracked on multiple levels from the in/out postings on work order jobs, by location, department or union. Review your current labor management reports and consider any changes that might be helpful and requirements that are essential to maintain.

**Indirect Account Codes** - Indirect accounts are used for collecting labor, parts and benefit transactions that can't be charged directly to work orders. These indirect charges can be used for inventory write-offs or adjustments, costs for maintaining your locations, equipment repair, cleaning or vendor services, fuel adjustments for tank inventory, shop supplies and more. If you aren't doing this currently this is the time to understand how you can collect the full cost of running your locations and use those total costs to accurately price your labor rates and the overhead percent to charge for fuel, inventory and commercial repairs.

**Fiscal Calendar** - This is an excellent time to review the dates that the system will use for you to run your end of period processes and close your billing cycles. Check your current fiscal calendar's start and end dates for each month. When you set up your system calendar check your end of period process dates and close billing period dates. If the dates are not close to your actual fiscal month end, your data may not be comparable between various months. This is the time to plan how you are going to handle closing your months and billing cycles and what data you want to reflect in each month. Also consider any conversion processes that may be run during implementation and the impacts they may have on any accounting period reports.

**User Defined Items** - Your new M5 System has a large number of items that you will create based on your current definitions for employees, locations, departments, units, vendors, parts and technical specifications. If there are additional data items that your users and managers would like to see on reports you can create the field in the database so it can be used and reported on.

**Inflation Rates** - Inflation rates can be built into your system calendar periods in the M5 system. Are you currently using an inflation rate in your accounting forecasting? You might want to consider using this capability if it applies to your business model.

**Markup Percentages** - What markup percentage is currently applied for parts, labor and commercial at each location? Do these markups occur at the system, location, resource or part number level? A solid financial review should be made as you implement M5 and periodically thereafter to ensure that you are truly covering the costs of maintaining your equipment.

**System Flags** - There are hundreds of System Flag switches in your M5 System. They are delivered with default settings but you will have to decide how many of them need to be changed in order to configure your system. They are discussed throughout this manual and in the System Administrator Manual. You should review the purpose of each flag setting and document the reason you are setting them on or off (Y/N). During the implementation you may decide to change a flag setting or later on you may decide to use a module differently and need to make a flag change. Be sure to keep a current list of all your flag settings and document the reason and impact of changing them.

**Shift Codes** - How will you define your work shifts for locations, units and employees? Shift Codes affect the recording of unit operational and maintenance downtime and reflect the true work hours of your employees. After you decide the shift codes you will be using on your time records, make sure that all employee records are accurate.

It is common for Shift Codes to be overlooked when employees change work shifts. Develop a procedure to maintain accurate shift information for all units, locations and employees.

**Organizational Hierarchy** - Is your current organizational chart accurate? Review the chart now and make sure you know where each of your departments belong within your organization. When you create your departments in the M5 System you have up to ten organizational levels available. Consistent, accurate descriptions are required for the integrity of your data.

**Contracts** - How do you currently use contracts for parts inventory, fuel purchases and commercial repairs? Your M5 System can be used to monitor blanket contracts or contracts driven by amounts and balances or start and end dates. Analyze your contracts and explore the possibilities for maximizing your savings and control with your M5 System.

**Workflow Process** - We have already mentioned the need to document your current workflow process during your interview and location visits. Now examine them closely and consider the possibility of adding new functionality such as campaign/recalls, work requests, deferred work, and warranty notification. As you become more familiar with the functionality of your M5 System you will be able to consider changes and improvements based on what the system can do and readily identify where in your workflow those improvements can best be implemented.

**Bar Codes** – Are you currently using bar codes and scanner technology in your business? Identify each area where they are being used and the functionality they provide. Bar codes can be used throughout the M5 system to enter data, time stamp labor transactions, record part numbers for receiving, issuing, and inventory and process work remotely with hand held equipment. If you do not use bar codes yet, now is a good time to consider implementing their use as you move to your M5 System.

As you can see the list of items you will be addressing during the implementation is extensive. After you get started you will most likely find other items to be concerned with as well. Use your Key User group meetings to discuss all the items that occur to you. Document your discussions and ideas carefully. Ideas that may seem small or unimportant to you may trigger an important detail for one of your other Key Users. This is your opportunity to explore and investigate all the possibilities. The more thorough you can be, the better your implementation will become.

# **Configuring the M5 Application**

M5 functionality is structured into modules. Code configuration will depend on the functionality implemented by the specific client. Some codes are used in more than one module. This manual will present the code configuration for each module. If a code is used elsewhere in the system, that module will be noted as well.

The modules that this document will cover are:

- Asset Management
- Inventory Management
- Work Order Management
- Employee Management
- General Use Codes
- System Administration and Security
- Fuel Management
- Shop Planning
- Billing Management
- Motor Pool Management

# **Asset Management**

#### **M5 Asset Classifications**



# M5 Asset Classification Terminology

The table below lists many of the terms used to describe asset classification and grouping within the M5 System.

Asset Class Category	This is the highest level of grouping of equipment into broad groups of equipment such as 'trucks' or 'heavy equipment' and should be groupings that you want to do reporting by.
	Controls unit budgeting, valuation, procurement (purchasing) and replacement policies.
Technical Specification	Grouping of equipment by physical characteristics of units or components of same year, manufacturer, make, model, engine, transmission.
Technical Specification Items	Additional information regarding the physical characteristics of a group of units/components in a single technical specification grouping. There may be as many of these user defined fields as are desired. These fields allow you to inquire (look up) by the data entered into them. The data must be the same for all units in the technical specification grouping. For example, all the units have engines manufactured by Cummins.
Activity Code	Code used to group units by their business use such as 'firefighting equipment'.
Maintenance Class Code	Defines a group of units that are alike in their maintenance scheduling requirements, have the same meter type(s), the same seasonality and same expected monthly usage although they may have different physical characteristics.

User Classes 1-5 Billing Code	Five user defined codes to further group equipment for reporting purposes. All equipment that is funded by external funds could be grouped under a class and that class could be divided into the different types of funding: State, Federal, Grant, Private Loan. A grouping of units defining the rules for billing motor pool, lease and non-lease rates back to the user or owner of equipment. The billing code is assigned to units. All units having the same rules of billing have the same billing code assigned to them.
Operational Class	Used to indicate a grouping of units by how they are utilized. Operational class is used within the unit availability module to assure that enough of a given type of vehicle is available for the end user at a given time of day. For example, Handicap vans.
Unit	Individual, uniquely numbered vehicle such as a bus, sedan, bucket track, tractor trailer.
Unit Items	An unlimited number of user defined fields which can be attached to equipment records for inquiry and reporting. An example might be the unique serial number of the installed engine or the key code for the keys of the piece of equipment. These fields are used to define the specific items which distinguish one unit from another that is the same year, make, model.
Component	Individual, uniquely numbered system/assembly such as an, transmission, fuel pump, etc. Components are normally associated with a specific unit. Components may be rebuilt and shelved as an inventory part might be.

# **Asset Classification Codes**

### Asset Class Codes

Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE	UNDO	DELETE FI	ND		
Asset	Class Codes				
Asset Class Co	odes (Loaded 49 records)				
Code	Description	Disabled	Location Usage Factor Flag	Smoothing Shift	
Α	AUTOMOBILES				
AC1	Asset Class 1			1	
AC1111	Asset Class 1111			1	- 11
AC2	Asset Class 2			2	- 11
AC3	Asset Class 3				
AC4	Asset Class 4				
AC998	Asset Class 998				
AC999	Asset Class 999				
ASDFA	asdf			1	
ATF	МОТ				
AUDIT	AUDIT - MANAGERS				
В	LIGHT TRUCKS				
С	HEAVY DUTY TRUCKS			1	

The Asset Class Codes frame allows you to create and maintain codes to assign to units with similar characteristics to create classes of units.

M5 supports a classification hierarchy for grouping units by type and function. The Asset Class Codes created and maintained here are the highest grouping in the hierarchy and a key part of this structure.

These codes are assigned to Category Codes on the Category Main frame. This allows for reporting and cost tracking of each category.

To create a new Asset Class Code, type the new code in the Code field in the first blank row at the bottom of the i-frame. This field has a limit of 10 characters. Next, enter a description to further define the Asset Class Code. This is a free form field with a limit of 30 characters.

The Location Usage Factor Flag is used in Replacement Modeling. On the Location Main frame, you can set a Replacement LTD Usage Factor. If you want this factor to be used in Replacement Modeling for the new Asset Class Code, select this checkbox.

If not, leave the checkbox cleared. Then select the SAVE button at the top of the frame to finish creating the new Asset Class Code.

Smoothing Shift must be a valid shift value from shift maintenance and is for use with the Work Request Smoothing Batch Process/Module.

You can modify existing codes after they are created or delete codes provided they are not in use anywhere else in the system. You also have the option to disable a code by selecting the Disable checkbox.

### Asset Types

#### Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIN										
nit Ass	et Type	s												
		-												
Codes (Loaded 11	records)													
Asset Type	Description	Accident	Accounting	Availability	Check Out	Billing	Forecasting	Fueling	License	Meter	Motor Pool	Procurement	Telematics	Warranty
ACCESSORIES	Accessories	No v	No V	No V	No V	No 🗸	No V	No v	No v	No v	No V	No v	No v	No v
ATTACHMENTS	Attachments	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
ELECTRONIC	Electronic	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
HIRE	Hire	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
MOBILE UNITS	Mobile Units	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
PLANT	Plant	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
STATIONARY	Stationary	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
TEMPORARY	Temporary	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
TOOLS	Tools	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
TRAILERS	Trailers	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸
UNIT	Metered vehicle	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸

The Unit Asset Types frame allows you to define asset type capabilities and functionality. The Unit Asset Types are predefined by AssetWorks and hard coded, however you can modify the description of the asset types.

You cannot delete an asset type; you can only disable them. To disable an asset type, select the Disable checkbox at the end of the row for type you want to disable. Select the SAVE button at the top of the frame to disable the asset type.

**Note:** After a type is disabled, you cannot modify the description or any of the capabilities for that asset type. Fields will display as read-only after you disable an asset type.

#### Asset Type Capabilities

The asset type capabilities are user-defined. Select 'Yes' or 'No' from the dropdown to turn on/off certain functionality for a particular asset type.

If an asset type does has a specific capability set to 'No', you will receive an error message stating that the asset type does not support that capability when trying to use the corresponding functionality/ frames.

For example, if Work Order is set to No and you try to enter a unit number with an asset type that has the Work Order capability set to 'No', you will receive the error.

- **Accident** Determines if the asset type will support Accident Module functionality on the Accident Entry frame.
- Accounting Determines if the asset type will support Unit Accounting functionality.
- **Availability** Determines if the asset type will support functionality within the Unit Availability module.
- **Check Out** Determines if the asset type will support Equipment Focus functionality on the Equipment Check Out frame.
- **Billing** Determines if the asset type will support Billing functionality.
- **Forecaster** Determines if the asset type will support the Batch Process Forecaster functionality.
- **Fueling** Determines if the asset type will support Fuel functionality such as Product Issues.
- **License** Determines if the asset type will support License functionality on Unit Main and/or the License/Permit Admin frame.
- **Meter** Determines if the asset type will have meters and support Meter Entry functionality.
- Motor Pool Determines if the asset type will support Motor Pool functionality.
- **Procurement** Determines if the asset type will support Procurement functionality.
- **Telematics** Determines if the asset type will support Telematics functionality.
- **Warranty** Determines if the asset type will support Warranty functionality on the Warranty Unit Setup frame.
- Work Order Determines if the asset type will support Work Order functionality.

### Asset Type Group Maintenance

SAVE		FRESH	DELETE	FIND	
Asset Type	e Group	) Mair	ntenano	ce	
Asset Type Group					
Excluded/included Asset	ot included CK ES TRENCHERS 2 4 SL	▲ >> <<	BUCKET TRUCKS BUCKET TRUCKS BUCKET TRUCKS MEDIUM TRUCK MEDIUM TRUCK - MEDIUM TRUCK -	<35 GAS	

#### Module(s): Asset Management, PMM

The Asset Type Group Maintenance frame allows the user to group similar asset types used in the Performance Measures Monitors module. This allows for measuring more than one asset type when creating a PMM.

# Asset Category Main

Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED ~
Asset Category Main
Code: Disabled: No V
Details Information Units/Comps Telematic Elements
Codes         Asset Class:         Commodity Code:         Maint. Repair Units: Non-Standard         Off-Road Use%:
Replacement Parameters     Depreciation Parameters       Current Base Unit Cost:     Term:       Month(s)

The Asset Category is the second highest level of grouping after Asset Class. The Asset Category Main frame allows you to create and define codes to group together units with similar functionality within your fleet.

Category groupings help simplify the procurement, budgeting, and analysis where details like year, make, and model are too specific. After creating Category Codes, you can group units with similar Technical Specifications, or Tech Specs, into a single Category.

The Details tab allows you to define Depreciation, Financing, Life cycle, and Replacement Parameters for the Category Code. You can view the list of Unit and/or Component Numbers assigned to the Category Code on the Units/Comps tab.

You can configure Telematics settings on the Telematic Elements tab. You can enter the Preferred Job Code for when Work Requests are created or you can choose No Action or No Fault if you want to ignore the fault code that comes in from the ECU.

# **Category Equipment Options**

#### Module(s): Asset Management

	5,	Budget Optio	( 5		/	
ory		Dudent American				
COMPACT TRUCK	4X2	Budget Amount: \$20,000.00				
ptions History						
tions						
tems and Budget (Loaded 14 record	ds)					
tems and Budget (Loaded 14 recor	ds)			Non Standard		
	ds) Disable	Actual Budget Amount	Default Budget Amount	Non Standard Flag		
tems and Budget (Loaded 14 recon Item ADD ESTIMATED UNIT COST	,	Actual Budget Amount	Default Budget Amount \$0.00		<b>#</b>	<b>^</b>
Item ADD ESTIMATED UNIT COST	Disable	Actual Budget Amount \$1.00		Flag		A
Item ADD ESTIMATED UNIT COST AWAITING	Disable		\$0.00	Flag		
Item ADD ESTIMATED UNIT COST AWAITING CD PLAYER	Disable	\$1.00	\$0.00 \$1.00	Flag		
Item ADD ESTIMATED UNIT COST AWAITING CD PLAYER CYRR	Disable	\$1.00	\$0.00 \$1.00 \$300.00	Flag		
Item ADD ESTIMATED UNIT COST AWAITING CD PLAYER CYRR EMERGENCY KIT	Disable	\$1.00	\$0.00 \$1.00 \$300.00 \$56.00	Flag		
Item ADD ESTIMATED UNIT COST AWAITING CD PLAYER CYRR EMERGENCY KIT HEATED SEATS	Disable	\$1.00	\$0.00 \$1.00 \$300.00 \$56.00 \$225.00	Flag		
Item	Disable	\$1.00	\$0.00 \$1.00 \$300.00 \$56.00 \$225.00 \$345.00	Flag		

The Category Equipment Options frame allows you to configure optional equipment items for Category Codes. Category Equipment Options are additional options such as a Two-Way Radio or a Trailer Hitch that can be added when purchasing new equipment. These items are created and maintained on the Item Master Definition frame.

The items and budget options setup on this frame will appear as options on the Category Options tab of the Unit Request and Unit Purchase Requisitions frames when requesting a Unit with the specific Category Code.

If System Flag 1079 is set to 'Y', the user can change the Default Budget Amount field on the Category Equipment Options frame. The Non-Standard Flag checkbox is a customer-specific functionality that requires extra approvals when Categories with Non-Standard options are requested.

This History tab displays Historical Budget Change information for the Category Code in a read-only format. The i-frame will display the Change Date, New Budget Amount, and the Changed By User.

# Tech Spec Main

#### Module(s): Asset Management, Workflow Management, Fuel Management

Technical Sp Number: 11FORDF33	Spec ecification —	NDO RE		DELETE	ND ATTACH	RELATED ~	Disabled:
🛨 Detail	Products	Exceptions	Unit/Comp	Assoc Tech Spec	Telematic Elements	Document Types	
2011	FORD			F350 4X4		PICKUP	
Trim & Re	eference		Reference:				

A Technical Specification, or Tech Spec, includes the Manufacturer, Make, Model, Year, and expected life of the unit. Units that are similar can be assigned the same Tech Spec code. This is a required field on Unit Main.

Tech Specs are very useful in setting up Standard Job information since units that have the same technical characteristics will tend to require the same parts and labor. They can also be useful in reporting and the overall management of the life of the unit.

You can add consumable products, modify tank capacity and product allocation as well as define the initial new equipment warranty on the Warranty Tech Spec frame in the 'Related' links at the top of the frame.

After you decide on a pattern for the number, control of future numbers is important. The number can in some way represent the group. For example, 93PUFF150XL might represent a 1993 Pickup, Ford F150XL model.

**Note:** When System Flag 5268 is set to Y, the Tech Spec Main frame will break down the segments and have an LOV for each segment defined on the Company Definition frame.

# Manufacturer/Make/Model

Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
Manufacturer/Make/Model	Actions
Filter ×	<u>Delete</u>
	New Manufacturer
Manufacturer/Make/Model	New Make
ē- 🥮 /	New Model
	Merge Actions
	Merge Manufacturer
	Merge Make
	Merge Model

The Manufacturer/Make/Model frame allows you to create and maintain a list of valid manufacturers, makes, and models to identify units within the M5 system. The Manufacturer/Make/Model combination is the basis for defining the technical specification for a unit.

The Manufacturer Make Model is entered on Tech Spec Main to define the tech spec code. The Tech Spec code is one of the primary identifying unit codes in M5. This table is a hierarchy with one model belonging to only one make and with one make belonging to only one manufacturer.

This frame has a similar functional dynamic to the Menu Maintenance frame. The folder system houses all Manufacturers, Makes, and Models. The 'Action' links are located to the right of the folder system.

For example, the Manufacturer/Make/Model could be TOYOTA/CAMRY/CAMRY LE. After created, you can then assign this combination to Tech Spec codes on Tech Spec Main.

# Tech Spec Items

Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELET	E F	IND RELATED ~	
ech Spec Iten	ns				
Technical Specification					
Number:	5050 44				
	F350 4 x 4				
Show All Items					
11FORDF350 Item Information (Lo	aded 7 records)	)			
11FORDF350 Item Information (Lo		) Mandatory	Validated	Value	
	aded 7 records) Type Character		Validated	Value	
Item	Туре	Mandatory			
Item 00 ROLLING STOCK (Y/N)	Type Character	Mandatory	<b>~</b>	NO	
Item 00 ROLLING STOCK (Y/N) 012345678901234567890	Type Character Number Character	Mandatory		N0 123	
Item 00 ROLLING STOCK (Y/N) 012345678901234567890 28-08-3212-	Type Character Number Character Character	Mandatory		N0 123	

The Tech Spec Items frame allows you to assign and maintain a list of items to associate with a Tech Spec for informational purposes. These data items are first created and maintained on the Item Master Definition frame before they can be added here. You can find more information about Item Master Definition in the System Administrator section of this document.

Items that are designated as mandatory on the Item Master Definition frame will automatically load. To view all available items at the same time, select the Show All Items checkbox.

The Item name, Type, whether and whether it is Mandatory or Validated are all designated on the Item Master Definition frame.

The value field will be free form and if the item does not have the Validated checkbox selected. If the checkbox is selected you must enter a valid value. These values are also designated on the Item Master Definition frame.

Note: You will not be able to delete items that have been designated as Mandatory.

# **Activity Codes**

#### Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND
Activity Code
- Activity Information
Activity Code: Disabled:
Activity Classification Personal Uses
Nonvehicle/No Utilization Activity: Take-Home Authorized:
Mission Critical: Personal Use Allowed:
Emergency Response: Personal Use Allowance:
Annual Activity
Expected Average Annual Use:
Low Annual Utilization:
High Annual Utilization:
- Seasonal Activity

Activity Codes give you the ability to indicate the type of activity/purpose the unit will serve within the fleet organization. Activity Codes allows you to track the costs of equipment to support a particular activity.

The Activity Code on a unit is a reporting class and is not required by the system. Its primary use is for identifying and comparing units with similar functions within the fleet organization by using reports. It is independent of the unit's type, location, department or any other identifier.

For example, you may want to have one activity code for law enforcement, one for administrative services and another for motor pool rentals.

By creating separate Activity Codes for each of these functions, you can create and run use and cost reports by activity/function regardless of what other ways the unit is classified within the system.

### MCC Main

#### Module(s): Asset Management, Workflow Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED ~	
MCC Main				
C Maintenance Class Code				
Code: Description:	Disabled:			
Monthly Expected Usage				
Type Min Usage Max Usage Length First:				
Second:				
Season				
Season Code: Description:				
Season Start: Season End:				

The Maintenance Class Code (MCC) gives you the ability to establish and assign preventive maintenance intervals and set expected monthly use for meter validations on units and components.

All units must have an MCC assigned, but the only requirement for an MCC is to create a code and assign a description to the code. However, in order to validate meters and use the Forecaster functionality, the user must setup the Monthly Expected Usage parameters.

You can assign an MCC to a unit on the Asset/Codes tab of Unit Main or to a component on Component Main in the Component Codes section.

The MCC is independent of all other asset codes. Units with different activities and classifications can be assigned to the same MCC.

Within each MCC the user can define work-scheduling criteria used by the Forecaster batch program such as seasonal use, meter type and maximum expected usage per month.

MCC's are also used in setting up Standard Job intervals and assigning jobs. All units with the same MCC will be on the same service cycle and have the same standard jobs assigned.

# User Class Codes

#### Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE	Class Codes	ELETE	FIND		
Class 1 (Loa	aded 24 records)				
Code	Description		Disabled Flag		•
ATV	ATV				
BOAT	BOAT				
BOTM	BOAT MOTOR				
CA	Sedan, non-police				
CAR	CAR				
CARW	CAR SW				
EPQT	EQUIPMENT			·	
GNMB	GENERATOR MOBILE				
GNPO	GENERATOR PORTABLE				
GNPP	GENERATOR PRIME POWER				
GNSB	GENERATOR STANDBY				
LBMB	LOAD BANK MOBILE				
MTHD	MATERIAL HANDLING				
ONIDI			0		-

User Class Codes can be setup to accommodate your organization's need to group units in ways that are not already defined in M5.

Five user-defined code tables are available. They are broken up by Class Type (1-5). You can use each type to create hundreds of different codes.

These are user-defined codes, so it is up to the user or organization to determine how the codes are to be entered and used in a way that will best suit the organization's needs.

User Class Codes are not required on the Unit record, however, by using System Flags 1181-1185 you can make them mandatory on unit entries.

# **Billing Codes**

#### Module(s): Asset Management, Billing

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED ~
Billing Codes
Billing Information Billing Code: Disabled:
No V
Type: NONLEASED   Toggle (Un)Approve All Units/Depts
Details Information Motor Pool Units/Depts Fixed
C Lease Information
Rate:   Rate Per:   Taxable:   Tax Scheme:     Day
Shift:
Season:
Repair Information
When to bill estimates

The Billing Codes frame allows you to create and maintain Billing Code records that define what to bill and how much. A billing code can be attached to a unit when the unit is created on Unit Main, or it can be assigned to a department on Department Main.

Billing codes provide the detailed information the system needs to collect and calculate a unit's billing such as the usage rate, charge back items, fixed charges, penalties applied, and so forth. This is a required field on the Unit Main frame.

There are three broad types of billing codes:

- 1. Leased Units are billed for leases, usage, fuel and repairs.
- Motor Pool/Task Units are billed for motor pool tickets. Usage cannot be charged, but a "Charge per Use," can be entered for the rate for usage entered on a motor pool ticket. While repairs and fuel can be set to bill, charges will bill to the owning or using department and not the department that opened the ticket.
- 3. **Non-Leased** Units cannot be billed for leases or motor pool, but can be billed for usage, repairs, and fuel.

To implement M5 billing requires additional configuration. The requirements are described in the M5 Billing Manual.

### **Operational Class Codes**

Module(s): Asset Management, Unit Availability

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FI	IND
	onal Clas		es		
Class Code Mainte	enance (Loaded 16 reco	rds)			
Class	Description		Disabled		
ADR	Test Class				
ADRTS	Test EDM				
BWHL	Bus w/wheelchair lift				
CMB	Mac Testrer				
CNOPCLASS1	Operational Class 1				
DPH	DOUG QA				
FLDR	Front Loader				
FLEX FUEL	Can use E85 Fuel				
HTRUCKS	Heavy Duty Trucks				
NEWCLASS	test new class				
PMC	pete test				
RLDR	Rear Loader				
SEE IT	see it				
SLDR	Side Loader				
STANDARD	Testing				
VEN	Vendor				
l			$\cap$		•

Operational Class Codes are user defined codes used to classify the different types of equipment that will be tracked using the Unit Availability Module. A unit must have an Operational Class Code assigned to it on Unit Main to track it using Unit Availability.

This frame allows you to create and maintain a list of Operational Class Codes to assign to the different types of units in your fleet. For example, a garbage truck would be a different operational class than a pickup truck or a police cruiser.

### Unit Main

Module(s): Asset Management, Workflow Management, Warranty Management, Fuel Management, Billing, Shop Planning, Inventory Management, Unit Availability.

SAVE	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	Related 🗸					
it Main									
nit Information nit: escription: ternate Unit No.:	Add Ne	9W				Statu	5:		
			w.	V V					
Asset/Codes Dept/Lo	cations Class	Meter/Accounting	License/Notes	GPS Location					
Year / Manufacture		<b>del</b> Mak	e		Model				
Unit Codes Serial Number:									
MCC: Activity:									
								Gross Vehicle Weight:	- 1

The Unit Main frame allows you to create new units and receive them into your fleet. You can create a new unit right on the Unit Main frame or you can receive on into inventory as the last step in the Unit Request Process.

Your organization can use this frame to effectively manage crucial information about the assets throughout their life cycle.

Units are defined in FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 as those assets that require maintenance tracking. Units need not be strictly vehicles but can be compressors, radios, or anything the user defines as an asset to be managed.

All units require a Maintenance Class Code, Billing Code, Owning and Using Departments and a Technical Specification. Other information can be added to the unit, but not all fields are mandatory.

### Unit Items

#### Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE	O REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	MORE ~				
nit Items								
Unit Information								
Unit:	GAS TRAILER				Status:	_		
20207 2002 SF6	GAS TRAILER				Active Unit			
20207 Item Information (Load	led 13 records)							
20207 Item Information (Load	ded 13 records)	Mandatony	Validata					
20207 Item Information (Load	ded 13 records) Role	Mandatory Item	Validate Value	Value				
•		Mandatory Item		Value TEST			1	
Item	Role	Item	Value				]	
Item AERIAL SERIAL NO CNTEST1	Role Character	Item	Value	TEST				
Item AERIAL SERIAL NO	Role Character Character	Item	Value	TEST A				
Item AERIAL SERIAL NO CNTEST1 COLOR COLOUR	Role Character Character Character	Item	Value	TEST A WHITE				
Item AERIAL SERIAL NO CNTEST1 COLOR	Role Character Character Character Character	Item	Value	TEST A WHITE TEST COLOR				
Item AERIAL SERIAL NO CNTEST1 COLOR COLOUR EM MODE	Role Character Character Character Character Character	Item	Value	TEST A WHITE TEST COLOR FIRE				
Item AERIAL SERIAL NO CNTEST1 COLOR COLOUR EM MODE FUEL - NEEDS ODO	Role Character Character Character Character Character Character	Item 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7	Value	TEST A WHITE TEST COLOR FIRE				

The Unit Items frame allows you to assign and maintain a list of items to associate with a unit for informational purposes.

These data items are first created and maintained on the Item Master Definition frame before they can be added here.

To view or modify a unit's existing items, enter a valid unit number from Unit Main in the Unit Number field and tab off. The list of items will display in the Item Information i-frame.

The Items that are designated as mandatory on the Item Master Definition frame will automatically load. To view all available items at once, select the Show All Items checkbox.

The Item name, Type, whether and whether it is Mandatory or Validated are all designated on the Item Master Definition frame.

The value field will be free form and if the item does not have the Validated checkbox selected. If the checkbox is selected you must enter a valid value. These values are also designated on the Item Master Definition frame.

# Unit Groups

#### Module(s): Unit Availability

Jnit Group:       Availability Status:         Inits Group (Loaded 3 records)         Unit No       Description         PMCO60       2018 FORD F150         17/09/2019       0	
Description         Start Date         Start LTD Usage Stop Date         Stop LTD U           PMC060         2018 FORD F150         17/09/2019         0	
MC060 2018 FORD F150 17/09/2019 0	
	sage Lead Unit 🧱
2MC062 2018 FORD F150 17/09/2019 0	

The Unit Group frame allows you create and maintain groups of units based on certain requirements or similarities the units might share. Unit Groups can be used in the Unit Availability module.

For Unit Groups, the Availability Status Codes are joined -- meaning when one unit is placed on a work order, the Availability Status for the rest of the group changes as well. The Unit Status Code must also be set to 'Y' for Allow Unit Group.

Each group must have a designated "lead" unit. Select the Lead Unit checkbox to designate a unit as the "lead" for the unit group.
### Component Main

#### Module(s): Asset Management, Workflow (Component Rebuild)

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED V	
Component Main	
Component Information	
Number:     Description:     Status:	
Technical Specification Information	)
Number:	
Category:	
Serial Number:	
	)
Component Codes	
MCC:	
System Code:	
Assembly System Code:	
Component Locations	
Location Stored:	

A component is a piece of equipment you want to track in order to evaluate its life cycle cost and performance. Component Main allows you to create and maintain records for these essential parts used in the operations of your fleet organization.

Components do not have a using department, nor does it have a depreciation record or billing code. Therefore, costs associated with a component do not bill to a department. It is not a full, road worthy piece of equipment but is frequently a part of a road worthy unit.

In the same way that materials and labor are charged to a unit, materials and labor are charged to a component through the work order process.

System Flag 1218 controls whether components are included in the Forecaster batch process when preparing reports.

# Asset Life Cycle Codes

### Unit Status Codes

#### Module(s): Asset Management

nit St	atus Co	des												
Codes (Loaded	13 records)													
Status Code	Label	Description	Trigger Field	Disposal Status?	Work Orders	Work Request	Forecaster	Reports	Capital	Allow Sales Info	Allow Unit Group	Renew VED License	LOV	
A	Active	Active Unit	In-service Date	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🛩	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	i.
В	Budgeted	Budgeted	Unit Purchase Request - Add New Unit No	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🛩	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🛩	Yes 🗸	j
D	Flag	Flagged for disposal	Unit Disposal - Disposal Status	Yes 🛩	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🛩	Yes 🛩	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	
F	Final	Finalized /Unit to be Auctio	Unit Disposal - Disposal Status	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🛩	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	j
	Inactive	Ready unit for service	Acquisition Date	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🛩	No 🗸	No 🛩	Yes 🗸	No 🛩	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	ſ
J	Auction/Junked	Unit at auction2B/replaced	Unit Disposal - Disposal Status	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🛩	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	ſ
0	Ordered	On order	Unit Purchase Request - Purchase Order	No 🛩	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🛩	Yes 🛩	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	ſ
P	Pending	Pending Unit		Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	j
R	RedeDecommissio	Redeploy unit /Ready for sale	Unit Disposal - Disposal Status	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🛩	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	j.
S	Sale (trans)	Sold/Disposed unit (translate)	Unit Disposal - Disposal Status	Yes 🗸	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🛩	Yes 🗸	j.
т	Totaled	Unit is totaled	UNIT DISPOSAL - DISPOSAL STATUS	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	j.
W	Storage/Prep	Prep Unit for Sale	Unit Disposal - Disposal Status	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🛩	No 🛩	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	j
х	Out of Service	Spare or backup	Unit Disposal - Disposal Status	Yes 🗸	No 🛩	No 🛩	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	No 🗸	Yes 🗸	

Unit Status codes define the stage of use or condition of a unit during its fleet life cycle. These values are hard coded in the system and control what application functions the system will allow to be performed on the unit.

You can modify the Label or Description of any Unit Status Code. The Trigger Field is read-only and identifies what event will trigger a unit to be designated with that Unit Status Code.

The six main categories of the statuses listed above are:

- 1. Active (A) When you assign a unit an in-service meter and in-service date, you are converting an "Ordered" or "Inactive" status unit into an "Active" status unit. "Active" status units can use all available FleetFocusTM M5 frames and functions.
- 2. Budgeted (B) When using the Unit Purchase Requisitions frame to budget future unit purchases, a unit is considered "Budgeted" if it has been requested by the user, but a purchase order number has not be assigned to the unit request. "Budgeted" status units are in the initial unit acquisition stage and have no working unit functions (for example, "Budgeted" status units cannot be fueled and cannot have work orders or work requests opened on them). You are able to run reports, however, against these units.
- 3. Flagged (D) When you decide to dispose of a unit during the replacement modeling process using the Replacement Model Manager frame or during the initial disposal stage using the Unit Disposal frame, the unit is considered flagged for disposal and placed in the "Flagged" status. "Flagged" status units can use all available FleetFocus™ M5 frames and functions. "Flagged" units may be considered available for sale, broken down for parts, junked or further managed as spares to eventually return to service ("Active" status) at some future date.

- 4. Inactive (I) When you assign a technical specification, maintenance class code, serial (VIN) number, arrival date, and acquisition date in the Unit Main frame to a unit in an "Ordered" status, you are converting it into an "Inactive" status unit. The unit will remain in the "Inactive" status until you assign it an in-service meter and in-service date on the Unit Main frame. You can open a work request (primarily for unit acquisition/preparation work), open a work order and issue fuel to an "Inactive" status unit. If you are not using the Unit Purchase Requisition frame to budget and order units, a unit is placed in the "Inactive" status when first entered on the Unit Main frame usually when a unit arrives from the vendor.
- 5. Ordered (O) When using the Unit Purchase Requisitions frame to order unit purchases, a unit is considered in the "Ordered" status if it has a requisition number and purchase order number assigned to it. "Ordered" status units cannot be fueled and work orders cannot be opened on them. Work requests can be opened on them for acquisition preparation work.
- 6. Sold (S) After selling a unit and entering sales information on the Unit Disposal frame, M5 will place the unit into "Sold" status. You can view information on a "Sold" unit on the Unit Main frame. Since the unit no longer has active fleet status, you cannot fuel, open work requests or open work orders against a "Sold" status unit. With appropriate authorization, a unit may be un-sold if circumstances dictate.

There are nine Yes/No dropdown fields for each Unit Status Code:

- 1. **Disposal Status** Certain codes cannot be disposal statuses and certain codes have to be disposal statuses. For codes that must have a certain designation, the dropdown is read-only and grayed out.
- 2. **Work Orders** This dropdown controls whether units with this Unit Status Code can have work orders opened against them.
- 3. **Work Request** Same as the work orders dropdown, this will control whether units can have work requests opened against them.
- 4. **Forecaster** This controls whether or not units with the unit status codes will be included when the batch process Forecaster is executed. For example, you may want to exclude any units in a Totaled status from Forecaster.
- 5. **Reports** This controls whether units with this status will show up on reports. You may want to exclude all sold units for reporting purposes.
- 6. **Capital** This controls whether or not Capitalized Cost information is allowed on the Unit Accounting frame.
- Allow Sales Info This controls whether sales information can be entered on the Unit Disposal frame for units. Certain non-disposal statuses will have this field grayed out and the 'Sold' Disposal Status will also have this field grayed out.
- 8. Allow Unit Group Controls whether to allow units to be assigned to a Unit Group.
- Renew VED License This dropdown controls Vehicle Excise Duty (VED) license renewal.

### **Disposal Reasons**

#### Module(s): Asset Management

JISP	osal Reas	ons	
	Loaded 17 records)		
Disposal	Loaded 17 lecolds)		
Reason 2	Description	Disabled	
3			
A	1000		
В			
D			
Н			
J			
K L		. 🔽	
R	-		
S			-

The Disposal Reason Codes frame allows you to create and maintain a list of codes used to identify the reason for disposing of a unit on the Unit Disposal frame.

The Disposal Reason is a required field on Unit Disposal. These codes are user-defined so it is up to your organization how to best format them to suit your needs.

Some examples of potential codes would be: A – Accident or E – End of Life or T – Totaled.

# **Disposal Cause**

#### Module(s): Asset Management

SA	VE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Disp	osal Cause		
Disposal (	Cause (Loaded 5 records)		
Disposal Cause	Description	Disabled	
A I	AGED INCIDENT/ACCIDENT		
N	NORMAL USE		
S	SCHEDULED		
Т	TIME'S UP		

The Disposal Cause frame allows you to define additional codes to indicate the cause for flagging or disposal of a unit on the Unit Disposal frame. These codes indicate why the unit was actually disposed of.

### Sales Class

#### Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE	<b>REFRESH</b> DELETE	FIND
Sales Class		
Sales Class (Loaded 3 records)		
Sales Class     Description       A     TEST SALES CL       B     TEST SALES CL       C     TEST SALES CL	ASS B	

You can use Sales Class codes to help further define and report on Unit Disposal activities. This field is available on the Unit Disposal frame if System Flag 5287 is set to 'Y', it is not a required field, but it can be used as a reporting tool.

# **Additional Asset Configuration Codes**

Depending on the functionality a client wishes to implement, additional configuration can be established in M5 to support additional features and functionality.

## License/Permits Types

#### Module(s): Asset Management

Maximum Units     License Subfee     Extend Flag     Expected Days       Image: Constraint of the state of t	2     365     \$10.00       2     365     2       365     2     365       365     2     365       365     365     365	Description         Units         Subfee         Flag         Days           LESS 5,000# - WEST PENN         Image: Comparison of the second secon	Fees	
✓     ✓     365     \$10.00       ✓     ✓     365       ✓     ✓     365       ✓     365       ✓     365       ✓     365       ✓     365	2     365     \$10.00       2     365     2       365     2     365       365     2     365       365     365     365	LESS 5,000# - WEST PENN         Image: Constraint of the second seco		
□     ✓     365       □     ✓     365       □     ✓     365	□     ✓     365       □     ✓     365       □     ✓     365			
□         ✓         365           □         ✓         365	□         ✓         365           □         ✓         365	7,001-9,000 - WEST PENN		
□				
		9,001-11,000 - WEST PENN		
□		11,001-14,000- WEST PENN 🗌 🔽 365		
		14,001-17,000- WEST PENN		-
		11,001-14,000- WEST PENN		
Subfees (Loaded 0 records)		Name Fee		

The License Permit Types frame is used to create and maintain codes to indicate the types of licenses and permits that will be assigned to units. These codes can be assigned on Unit Main or on the License/Permit Admin frame, depending on the value of System Flag 2015. The value in the Maximum Units field represents the number of Unit Licenses or Permits that can use this Type code.

To associate subfees with the license or permit type, select the Subfee checkbox. This will load the fields in the Subfees i-frame. Type in a name for the subfee (14 character limit) and a value in the Fee field (dollar amount).

The License Flag must be selected for License Types if you want them to be eligible to be the Primary License for a unit.

## Warranty Tech Spec

#### Module(s): Asset Management, Warranty Processing

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED ~	
Warranty Tech Spec	
Tech Spec Information       Tech Spec:       11FORDF350       2011 Ford F350 4 x 4	Template
Whole Unit Sub-Unit Parts	
Vendor Information Number:	
Whole Unit Warranty Details         Usage:       Meter Type:         70000.00       Miles          Elapsed Time:	
60 Month(s)	

The Warranty Tech Spec frame allows you to setup and define warranty parameters at the Tech Spec level. This gives you the ability to group warranties together for units within the same Tech Spec. This will save time when entering warranties that are the same for a group of units.

After the tech spec warranties are defined and the tech spec is applied to the unit, the warranty terms are carried down to the unit. Any changes to the terms of the warranty will not update at the unit level. Only new warranty terms applied at the tech spec level will then carry down to the unit. Otherwise, changes must be made at the unit warranty level.

On this frame you can define:

- **OEM Whole Unit Warranty** Bumper to bumper.
- **OEM Extended Warranties** Systems and assemblies.
- **OEM Parts** Parts installed on the equipment at time of delivery.

**Note:** All warranty processing actually happens at the unit level. See Warranty Unit Setup.

**Warranty Tech Spec Template** - If you are using a tech spec warranty as a standard, select the Template checkbox. Only users that have the privilege of **UPD WARR TECH SPEC** are authorized to update the template.

The settings for System Flags 1332 and 1333 are very important in Warranty Processing as they determine how M5 will calculate initial warranty usages and dates along to determine the appropriate warranty expiration values.

## Warranty Unit Setup

#### Module(s): Asset Management, Warranty Processing

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH	H DELETE	FIND	ATTACH	RELATED 🗸		
Warranty L	Jnit Setup						
- Unit Information							
Unit No:							
20207 2002 5	SF6 GAS TRAILER						
Tech Spec: T0014 2000 U	Jnited Express SF6 Gas TI						
Status: LTD Usa		Meter Date:					
Active Unit 0		01/06/2002					
						J	
Whole Unit Sub-	Unit Parts Issue	d Parts					
- Vendor Information -				_			
Number:							
	]						
- Whole Unit Warranty	Details						
Miles	Elapsed Time						
Policy Parameters							
0	0	Month(s)					
Acquisition Usage	18/04/2000	<b>E</b>					
In Service Informa							
0	18/04/2000	<b></b>					
Expiration:							
0		Ē					

The Warranty Unit Setup frame displays the warranty terms setup at the Warranty Tech Spec level (if they exist) and allows you override those terms or setup individual warranties at the unit level.

This frame allows you to add additional sub-unit warranties, change or override terms, add warranty parts, and change expiration dates (depending on the values of System Flags 1132 and 1333).

## Tech Spec Main – Products Tab

Module(s): Asset Management, Fuel Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE	FIND ATTACH RELATED ~	
Number:         Description:           [11FORDF350]         2011 Ford F350 4 x 4		Disabled:
Detail     Products     Exceptions     Unit/Comp     Assoc Tech Spec      Vehicle Coefficient Settings      Vehicle Type:     On-Road:	ec Telematic Elements Document Types	
NULL     None       Fuel Class:     NULL		
Fuel Economy City:     Fuel Economy Highway:       Fuel Economy Combined:		
Product (Loaded 1 records)		
Product Description Type 1 GASOLINE test FU	Issue Capacity Fuelings Qty	

The Products tab can be used to assign consumable fuel products and fueling information to the Tech Spec code. You must first setup and define these products on the Product Main frame.

The Vehicle Coefficient Settings are used in Greenhouse Emission reporting.

To assign a consumable product from Product Main to the Tech Spec, type in a product code or double-click in the Product field to select one from the LOV. The Description, Type, and Issue fields will automatically display the information from Product Main.

You can then enter in a Capacity for the tank, Max Daily Fuelings, and Max Daily Qty. for fueling purposes.

### Product Unit Setup

#### Module(s): Asset Management, Fuel Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DEL Product Setup Unit	ETE FIND RELATED	v .	
Unit: 20207 2002 SF6 GAS TRAILER		Status: Active Unit	
Fuel Edit         Enforce Valid Meter: Retry Meter 1 Count:         0         Restrict to Shift:         Restrict to Shift:         Restrict to Shift:         Retry Meter 2 Count:         0         Employee Required:         Validate Employee:			
Products Cards			
Product Edit Mode     Manual O Copy From Techspec			
Product Information for unit 20207 (Record 1 of 1)			
Prod Last No Description Issue Date	First Second Tank Meter Meter Capacity		rrimary IIII Flag

The Product Setup Unit frame allows you to associate a product from Product Main to a specific Unit. First, you must setup the products on this frame before you can issue the product to the unit.

You can create these associations manually on the unit or you can copy from the Unit's Tech Spec. The default is 'Manual' which allows you to manually add products to the unit. 'Copy from Tech Spec' allows you to pick and choose which products you want to copy from the Unit's Tech Spec.

**ORVR Fitted** - Indicates if the unit has an 'Onboard Refueling Vapor Recovery' vehicle emission control system to capture fuel vapors from the vehicle gas tank during refueling.

**Primary Flag** - Indicates the primary fuel product for the unit. Only one product can be the primary product.

# Assignment Type

#### Module(s): Asset Management

Codes (New record numb	per 5)			
Assignment Type	Show Which Address	Unique for Only 1 Person	Disabled	
POOL	Employee Location Parking Location	✓ Yes ✓ ✓ No ✓		
SECOND	Employee Location			
TAKE HOME	Employee Location	▼ No ▼		
[	Employee Location	✓ No ✓		

The Assignment Type frame is another code frame that is user-defined and can be used to further define Unit Operator Assignments. The Unit Operator Assignment frame is accessed by using the Operator Assignment Query frame. If System Flag 2081 is set to 'Y', Assignment Type codes will be required on Unit Operator Assignments.

## Assignment Codes

#### Module(s): Asset Management

ssignmen odes (New record number		
Assignment Code XECUTIVE PERSONAL AKE HOME	Disabled	

The Assignment Code frame allows you to create and maintain a list of user-defined codes to further define Unit Operator Assignments. If System Flag 2082 is set to 'Y', Assignment Codes will be mandatory on Unit Operator Assignments. The Unit Operator Assignment frame is accessed by using the Operator Assignment Query frame.

# Accident Cause

#### Module(s): Asset Management – Accident Module

Accident Cause	e (Loaded 4 records)		
Cause	Description	Disabled	
2ND VEH	another vehicle		
FOG	foggy		
SP	speeding		
WR	wet road	<b>~</b>	

The Accident Cause frame allows you to create and maintain a list of Accident Cause codes for use on the Accident Entry frame. These codes identify the cause of an accident when entering accident details on the Accident Entry frame.

### **Accident Types**

Module(s): Asset Management - Accident Module

SAVE	UNDO	SH DELE	TE FI			
ccident Types						
Accident Types (Loaded 5 records)						
Type ANIMAL	Description	Disabled				
FE	animal front-end crash					
PED	pedestrian					
RE	rear-end crash					
VEH	vehicular					

The Accident Types frame allows you to create and maintain a list of Accident Type codes for use on the Accident Entry frame. These codes will be used to define the type of accident when entering accident details on the Accident Entry frame.

## Accident Items

#### Module(s): Asset Management – Accident Module

ems Master D	)efiniti	ior	)				
Type: Accident							
ccident Item Information (Loaded	130 records)						
Item # OF PEDESTRIAN INJURIES	Type Character	v	Mandatory Item	Validated Value	Default Value	Disabled	•
ACCIDENT/DAMAGE INVOLVED	Character	~			0		
ACCIDENT/DAMAGE INVOLVI	Character	~		Ω			
ACCIDENT/DAMAGE INVOLVIG	Character	~					
ACCIDENT/DAMAGE INVOLVIN	Character	~					
AID CASE	Number	$\sim$					
ANIMAL	Character	~		<b>~</b>	N		
ANY INJURIES	Character	~			N		-

After created in the Item Master Definition frame, Accident Items can be added as custom fields to the Accident Entry frame by using the Screen Designer.

# **Inventory Management**

This is a schematic of the relationship between the master part record in M5 and the location records.



#### Master Part Record vs. Inventory Location Record

# **Inventory Classification Frames**

### Part Main Catalog

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	elete F	RELATED ~		
Part Mai	n Catalo	ba				
Part Identification		5			、 、	
Number:				Manufacturer:		
X Refs:		Crea	ate Duplicate	Status:		
✓				Inactive 🖌		
Description:				New/Used/Rebuilt:		
Used Part No.:		Used Part Manuf	acturer:	Adjust Used Part Inventory Upon Issue:		
Superseded By P	art:	_ _ Superseded By Pa	art Manufacturer:			
		]				
Extended Part Desc	ription					_
						ון
0						
Settings						
Standard:						
Average:						
Retail:						
Discount Code:						
Unit of Inventory	Issue: Hazardou	S:				
Unit of Inventory	Issue: Hazardou	SI				

The Part Main Catalog allows you to create and maintain records for all the stock, non-stock, and consignment parts used throughout your fleet organization. The Master Catalog is separate from the actual inventory at each location. You can revise or add to the catalog as needed.

The Part Main Catalog contains definitional information about each part and the Part Inventory Location contains information on what is in stock at each specific inventory location. Before a part can be added to a location on Part Inventory Location Manager (PILM), you must create the record on this frame first.

If System Flag 5210 is "Y", this permits the creation of stock parts at locations only if the part master is deemed stock; a part can be created as non-stock without regard to the part master's stock or non-stock setting.

### Part Manufacturers

#### Module(s): Inventory Management

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Part Manufac	turers		
Manufacturers (Loaded 124 recor	rds)		
Code 123	Disabled		
3-M 3M			
A-1			
AFF			
AL AUTO LITE AMA			
ANOTHER'S			
ARROW			
ASI_INTERFACE B&D TECHNOLOGIES			
BAL			
BAYER			
BEN			
BENDIX BLT			
BOYC	0		

The Part Manufacturers frame allows you to create and maintain a list of codes for use on the Part Main Catalog to indicate the manufacturer of a certain part.

FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 allows the user to have the same part number, differentiated by Part Manufacturer, multiple times in the system. For example, oil filters may be purchased from numerous manufacturers but rather than maintaining cross-references and separate numbers, the user can assign just one part number to oil filters and distinguish the number with a Part Manufacturer.

Likewise, two different manufacturers may choose to assign the same number to unlike parts. The system, by using a manufacturer code, allows you to track both parts using the same part number.

## Unit of Measure

#### Module(s): Inventory Management, Asset Management, Fuel Management

	f Magaura			
πιο	f Measure			
Init of Measu	re (Loaded 31 records)			
Code	Description	Disabled	Default	USG Conversion Factor
1 BOX	1 Box			
	Box			
ASE	Case			
G	Diesel in Gallons			1.000000
L	Diesel in Liters			0.264175
00S	DOS			
Q	Diesel in Quarts			0.250000
RUM	drum			
A	Each			
ACH	EACH			
-T	Feet			
GAL	Gallons			1.000000
KAN	KAN			
KTN	KTN			
KW	Kilowatt			
LOT	lot			
TR	Litore			0.264175

The Unit of Measure frame is where you create and maintain a list of codes to define quantities used for specific measurements of products and parts.

In addition to standard units of measure such as gallons, liters, feet, or meters you have the option to define custom units, such as 'box' or 'bunch' to meet your organization's needs.

**USG Conversion Factor** – This figure will be used by the system to convert any UOM to any other UOM. For example, a UOM of GAL would have a 1 in the new column. A UOM of LIT (or any other name for "liter" of the client's choosing) and it would have a factor of .264172.

### Commodity Codes

#### Module(s): Inventory Management, Asset Management, Fuel Management

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND		
Commodi	ty Codes			
- Commodity Informatio	n			
Code:	Description:	Disabled:		
Туре:				
Unit of Measure:				
Markup Scheme:				
Notes				)
			/i]	J

The Commodity Codes frame allows you to create and maintain codes used to group similar parts together for purchasing purposes. Rather than entering a list of individual part numbers on a Purchasing Contract, a single Commodity Code can be used for a vendor.

For example, you might want to group all transmission parts together or all brake parts. Commodity Codes can be assigned to part numbers on the Part Main Catalog.

There are several standards that exist for commodity coding such as the National Institute of Government Purchasing (NIGP) coding structure, copyrighted by Periscope Holdings, Inc., that standardizes purchasing for consistency and efficiency in the ordering process. For example, all automotive parts begin with the numbers '060'.

A review of the potential use of commodity codes and how to enter them on this frame should be considered.

### Hazardous Material

#### Module(s): Inventory Management

	DELETE FIND			
Hazardous Material				
C Selection Criteria				
Class	/Division:			
	Group:			
Hazardous Material Codes (Loaded 0 records)				
Hazardous Material Codes (Loaded 0 records)				
Proper Ship Name			Description	Disabled
		All 🗸		

Dangerous goods, also called hazardous materials or HazMats, are solids, liquids, or gases that can harm people, other living organisms, property, or the environment. They are often subject to chemical regulations.

Dangerous goods include materials that are radioactive, flammable, explosive, corrosive, oxidizing, asphyxiating, bio hazardous, toxic, pathogenic, or allergenic.

Also included are physical conditions such as compressed gases and liquids or hot materials, including all goods containing such materials or chemicals, or may have other characteristics that render them hazardous in specific circumstances.

The most widely applied regulatory scheme is that for the transportation of dangerous goods. M5 contains changes to the Part Main part record to store and print comprehensive hazardous material information. Hazardous data fields can now be defined and associated with hazardous parts.

### Part Items

#### Module(s): Inventory Management

SAVE UNDO REI	<b>FRESH</b> DELETE	FIND		
Part Identification Number: 12-001	Manufacturer:			
X Refs: 12-001 (MST) V Description: AXLE - REAR, NON-DRIVEN	Status: Show All	ltems		
12-001 Item Information (Loaded 0 records				
Item	Type Mandatory	Validated	Value	

The Part Items frame allows you to assign and maintain a list of data items to associate with a part for informational purposes.

You must first create these data items on the Item Master Definition frame before you can add them here.

The Items that are designated as mandatory on the Item Master Definition frame will automatically load. To view all available items at once, select the **Show All Items** checkbox.

You must setup the Item name, Type, and whether it is 'Mandatory' or' Validated' on the Item Master Definition frame.

# System/Component/Parts

Module(s): Inventory Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND			
Syster	n/Comp	onents/	'Parts				
- System - Ass	embly Code						
Code: 00-001	FOR SERVICE						
Part Code De	tailsfor00-001 (Loaded	1 2 records)					
Code	Description			====			
A B	test						
	test						

This frame is used to maintain associations between specific System/Component Codes and ATA Part Codes. (Not to be confused with Part Numbers.) The purpose of this association is to take this code (13-001-002 or System/Component/Parts codes) and create an ATA cross reference between it and a Master Part Catalog number. For example:

The ATA job code 01-13-001 translates into the following:

- Work Accomplished Code (WAC) 01 = Repair
- System Code 13 = Brake System
- Assembly Code 001 = Front Disc Brakes

The job calls for the front disc brakes to be repaired. Specific parts can be cross-referenced to this task by associating a Part Code to the System/Component Code and then taking that Part Code and placing it on the Master Part Catalog number.

The System/Component/Parts Code frame allows the user to create this association and attach this code to a part number in the Master Part Catalog that will then generate an ATA cross-reference. These associations will also generate a pop-up displaying the option of the ATA cross-referenced part number when charging a part to that job.

These associations are valuable to users who track inventory based on the jobs performed.

### Part Inventory Location Manager

Module(s): Inventory Management, Workflow Management

SAVE UNDO REFRE	SH DELETE FIND RELATED ~
Dort Inventory Lago	tion Monagor (DILM)
Part inventory Loca	tion Manager (PILM)
Location:	
FM FM Parking Location	
<ul> <li>Part Identification</li> </ul>	
Number:	Manufacturer:
00407	OLD
X Refs:	Status:
00407 (Master No.) OLD V Description:	Active V Type:
1 GAL PEAK GLOBAL ANTIFREEZE	NEW V
Part Location Notes	
Part Main Notes	
Paramatere Stock Statue Last Ever	
Parameters Stock Status Last Ever	nt History Reorder
Settings	
Stock Type: Reorder Allowed: Stock V Yes V	
Issue to Department: Issue to Account:	
Yes 🗸 Yes 🗸	
Core Tracking: Core Charge:	
No         \$0.00           Qty On Hand:         RAV:	
8 0.00	
Added to Loc: Charge Code:	
17/09/2019 💼	

The Part Inventory Location Manager (PILM) frame allows you to define location specific information for parts that exist in the Part Main Catalog. The Part Main Catalog contains the general information for all part records at all locations. Part Inventory Location Manager contains the information that is specific for a given part at a given inventory location.

The PILM record has information such as stock quantities, on-order quantities, and quantities in transit as well as pricing methods, bin locations, transaction histories, vendor reordering information and more. When you receive parts into inventory, you are updating the record at the inventory location.

After you create a part record in the Part Main Catalog, you must go to the Part Inventory Location Manager and add that part to the desired inventory location. **Note:** You must be logged in at the location to which you want to add the part. The location on the Part Inventory Location Manager frame will default to your current location.

### Part Bins

#### Module(s): Inventory Management, Asset Management

	AVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸
Part	Bins				
Bin Code					
Starting					
	Retrieve				
				1	
Bin Infor	rmation (Loaded 35 records)				
Bin	Description	Disabled			
001	L3-001				
002	L3-002				
003	L3-003 edit				
004					
01A	test				
1.4.B	1.4.B				
100	Test 1				
12A	test				
12B	test				
140	Test 2				
140A	disabled	<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>			
140B	enabled				
200	BR-BIN1				

The Part Bins frame is used to create and maintain a list of codes to identify the physical location of where a stock part can be found at a particular inventory location.

For example, the code could identify a row, shelf, box or tray. These part bins can be entered on the Part Inventory Location Manager. Part Bins can also be used as a method for conducting a Physical Inventory Count.

System Flag 5033 controls whether or not part bins are required as well as whether or not they are validated.

### Warranty Part Setup

Module(s): Inventory Management, Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸
Warranty	Part S	Setup			
-Part/Vendor Informa	ation				
Part No:					
Vendor No:					
Warranty Informatio	n				
Terms Usage:	UM: Miles 🗸				
Terms Time:	Month(s)				

The Warranty Part Setup frame allows you to define warranty terms for a specific part. This frame can be called as a menu item, but is typically accessed by setting the Warranty flag to 'Yes', on the Part Main Catalog for a particular part.

If you access the frame by using a menu, you will receive an error message when entering a part that does not have the flag set to 'Yes' on Part Main.

### **Purchasing Contracts**

#### Module(s): Inventory Management, Fuel Management, Workflow Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELE	FIND
Part Purchasing Contract	
Contract Information Contract: Vendor No:	
Parts Fuel/Products Commercial	Contract Amounts Award Amount: 0 CTD ORDER Amount:
Contract Dates Status: Status Date:	0 CTD Revd Amount: 0
Start Date: End Date:	Balance Amount: 0 Warn At Amount: 0
Contract Notes	

Purchasing Contracts can be established for: Part(s), Fuel or Commercial Repairs. They can be:

- Blanket (Open PO)
- Commodity
- Specific Part Number

Contract lines may be for commodities which is a purchasing grouping and means that any part whose commodity on the Part Master Record matches the contract line's commodity can be ordered off the contract.

Part contracts can also be set up by specific part number however this is not a popular method as it is labor intensive. The commodity method is helpful for those customers who purchase broad categories of parts from a particular vendor and need to ensure that spending does not exceed a preset limit for the vendor.

Commodity contract lines have no price or quantity, and the unit of order is optional. Contract may have contract items.

Refer to the *M5 System Administration* section for more information. The configuration of vendors is described in the *M5 General Use Code* section.

## **Price Types**

#### Module(s): Inventory Management

Code agreed price       Description       Adjustment PC       Discount PC       DiscountDay(s) Ship Terms       Tax FI         AG       agreed price       0.00       0.00       0.00       0       0         TBA       to be determined       0.00       0.00       0       0       0       0	SAVE	UNDO <b>REFRESH</b> DELETE	FIND				
Code         Description         Adjustment PC         Discount PC         DiscountDay(s) Ship Terms         Tax FI           AG         agreed price         0.00         0.00         0 1D         0	Price Ty	/pes					
AG agreed price 0.00 0.00 0.00 1D 0	Price Types (Load	led 2 records)					
	Code		Adjustment PC	Discount PC	DiscountDay(s) Ship Terms	Tax Fl	
TBA         to be determined         0.00         0.00         0 TW         Image: Constraint of the second s		agreed price	0.00	0.00	0 1D		
	TBA	to be determined	0.00	0.00	0 1W		
	•					_	

Price Types are user-defined codes used to define different pricing schemes for use on Purchasing Contracts. This frame allows you to create and maintain a list of those codes.

The Adjustment Percentage, Discount Percentage, and Discount Days fields are optional. Values entered here will be applied when this Price Type is associated with a Purchasing Contract. Ship Terms is a required field. The Tax FL field is also optional and is not a validated value.

#### Shipment Terms

Module(s): Inventory Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIN
Shipm	ent Term	S		
Ship Terms (Lo	aded 3 records)			
Code	Description			
1D	1 Day			
1W	1 Week			
2D	2 Days			

The Shipment Terms frame allows you to create and maintain a list of user-defined codes that can be used to identify the types of delivery services used for parts ordered using Purchasing Contracts. Shipment Terms can also be assigned to Price Types.

### Purchase Order Items

Module(s): Inventory Management

save UNDO	save UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND									
Item Selection Type: Purchase Order  Purchase Order Item Informatio	n (Loaded 5 records	)								
Item EXPORTED TO VENDOR	Type Character		Mandatory Item	Validated Value	Default Value		Disabled			
FAX	Character	$\sim$		<b>Z</b>	FAX					
NON VALIDATED	Character	$\sim$			123					
PO ITEM1	Character	~		<b>~</b>	0010					
PO VALID	Character	$\sim$		<b>~</b>	В					
	Character	~								
			For	Validated Ite	ms (Loaded 0 records)					
					interest of the second s					

Purchase Order Items can be created on the Item Master Definition frame. After created, these items can be entered on a tab directly on the Purchase Order frame.

### **Requisition Reject Reasons**

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management

SAVE	UNDO <b>REFRESH</b> DELETE	FI	IND
Req. Re	ject Reasons		
Reason Codes (Lo	paded 4 records)		
Reason	Description	Disabled	
1	ORDERED BY MISTAKE		
2	TOO MANY SHIRTS		
3	OUT OF BUDGET		
4	WRONG VENDOR		

This frame allows you to create and maintain a list of Reject Reasons to be used in the Unit Request Process or Part Request Process.

For Unit Requests, the reject reason would be entered on the Unit Request or Unit Request Approve frame. For Part Requests, these reject reasons would be used on the Purchasing Requisition frame.

In some organizations, a person requests parts and then a buyer applies an approval or rejection. If you intend to use requisitioning for the purchasing function and expect them to be rejected you will need to develop a set of rejection codes in this frame.

**Note:** If System Flag 5192 is set to 'Y', you will be required to enter one of these reason codes when rejecting a Unit Request.

### Part Failure Codes

Module(s): Inventory Management, Workflow Management

SAV	E UNDO REF	RESH	DELETE		FIND	RELATED 🗸
art F	Failure Codes	3				
Part Failure	Codes (Loaded 19 records)					
Code	Description	Disabled				
F	FAILED		_			
PF0005	BENT 2					
PF0010	BROKEN/FRACTURED					
PF0020	BURNED/OVERHEATED					
PF0030	DAMAGED EXTERNALLY					
PF0040	GROUNDED/SHORTED					
PF0050	LEAKING					
PF0060	RUSTED/CORRODED					
PF0070	SEIZED					
PF0080	SCORED/GALLED					
PF0090	TORN/PUNCTURED					
PF0100	WARPED					
PF0110	WORN OUT					
PF0200	IMPROPER PART					
PF0210	IMPROPER INSTALL					
PF0220	IMPROPER ALIGNMENT					
PF0230	IMPROPER ADJUSTMENT			_		
PMC	DETE TEOT			•		

Part Failure Codes can be used on a part issue to identify how or why a previous part that was installed failed or malfunctioned. To implement this functionality on Work Order Main, System Flag 5015 must be set to 'Y."

The use of these codes is optional; they are preloaded in M5. You may wish to track why parts are being replaced during a corrective action on a unit. Again, it is up to you to add, delete, modify any or all of these codes as may be appropriate for your business plan. System Flag 1321 controls whether part failure codes are required when parts are issued.

Failure	Code Description
PF0005	BENT
PF0010	BROKEN/FRACTURED
PF0020	BURNED/OVERHEATED
PF0030	DAMAGED EXTERNALLY
PF0040	GROUNDED/SHORTED
PF0050	LEAKING
PF0060	RUSTED/CORRODED
PF0070	SEIZED
PF0080	SCORED/GALLED
PF0090	TORN/PUNCTURED
PF0100	WARPED
PF0230	IMPROPER ADJUSTMENT
PF0110	WORN
PF0200	IMPROPER PART
PF0220	IMPROPER ALIGNMENT
PF0210	IMPROPER INSTALL

### Variance Reason

Module(s): Inventory Management, Asset Management (Component Rebuild Module)

5	SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELET	ΓE	FIN
Vari	anc	e Reas	on			
Variance	e Reason	Codes (Loaded 2 re	cords)			
Code	D	escription		Disabled		
1	1	TEST				
2	1	NOT NEEDED				

The Variance Reason frame allows you to create and maintain a list of codes to be used in the Component Rebuild Process.

The variance reason code is required when the quantity of fabricated parts being received into inventory is not equal to the quantity of fabricated parts being requested at the time of the work order completion process when the Job Reason code is marked with a Component Rebuild designation.

### Season Codes

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND			
	Codes						
Season Codes (L	oaded 7 records)						
Code	Description	Season Start	Season End	Pre Period	Post Period	Disabled	
AK	All Seasons AK	Jan-01	Dec-31	0	0		
ALL	All Year	Jan-01	Dec-31	0	0		
NON-WINTER	Non-Winter	Jun-01	Sep-01	0	0		
SUMMER	summer	May-01	Aug-31	0	0		
TEST	testing	Dec-01	Jan-31	0	0		
Х	Testing	Oct-24	Dec-24	0	0		
Z	AC	Oct-14	Apr-14	0	0		

This frame allows you to create and maintain a list of Season Codes. These are optional codes can be used to assist in the reordering of parts and scheduling and forecasting maintenance for units.

Season Codes can be entered on the MCC Main, Activity Codes, Part Main Catalog, and Part Inventory Location Manager frames.

## **Cost Category Codes**

Module(s): Inventory Management

S/	AVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Cost	Category C	odes		
Cost Cate	egory Codes (Loaded 4 records	)		
Code	Description		Disabled	
A1	National Part			
A2	Supply Part			
A3	Auto Parts			
A4	Re-Use Part			

The cost category codes frame allows the user to create a user defined code stored at the Inventory Level to be used within the Supply Distribution frame.

## Part Kits

#### Module(s): Inventory Management

	0 REFRESH DELET Description: STOCK PARTS KIT CL	FIND		
9KIT Parts in the Kit (Loaded	3 records)			
Part Number KIT01	Description STOCK PART 1 OF 3 FO	Manufacture R KIT NAPA	Quantity	
KIT02	KIT PART 2 - STOCK	ARROW	1	
KIT03	KIT PART 3 STOCK	BAL	7	

The Park Kits frame allows you to create a set of parts from existing stock parts that are commonly used together for a job. This Part Kit can simplify the inventory management steps involved and ensure that you consistently have the same parts available for the recurring jobs.

To ease the issue and transfer of parts, a group of parts called a "kit" can be created. These kits "expand" into their list of included parts during the issue or transfer, and from then on are considered individual part line items.

Part Kits do not allows for serial or lotted numbers and the code must be a unique identification code and cannot be a part number already in use in your Part Main Catalog.

# **Physical Inventory Setup**

### Part Inventory Parameters

Module(s): Inventory Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND	RELATED 🗸			
Part Inventory Parameters					
Location:					
FM FM Parking Location					
Part Identification					
Number: Man	ufacturer:				
X Refs:					
	-				
Description: Statu Inac	is: Type: tive 🗸				
		J			
Physical Inventory Parameters					
Cycle Count	ABC Parameters				
Code:	Override Values Sy	stem Values			
	ABC Class:				
	Cycle Count Days:				
Next Physical Inventory	ר (בבבי) ו				
Date: Cycle Count Baseline Date:	Recount Qty:				
Current Physical Inventory	Recount Price %:				
	December 201				
Id:	Recount Dollar:				
L		J			

The Part Inventory Parameters frame allows you to view and modify the Physical Inventory parameters for a particular part. These parameters determine how parts are counted during a physical inventory.

To view or modify the parameters for a specific part, start by entering the inventory location of the part in the Location field at the top of the frame.

#### **Physical Inventory Parameters**

Cycle Count - A Cycle Count is one method for collecting physical inventory counts. Cycle Count Codes determine how often a physical inventory count is performed on a specific part. Enter a code or double-click in the field to select one from the list of values (LOV).
Next Physical Inventory Date - Date of the next scheduled physical inventory, read-only.
Cycle Count Baseline Date - Used as the baseline to schedule future counts.

**Current Physical Inventory ID** - If the part is currently part of an existing Physical Inventory, that ID will display in this field.

#### **ABC Parameters**

ABC Class codes are user-defined inventory movement codes assigned to stock parts used to indicate slow, medium, and fast moving parts for the purpose of reordering those parts, specifically this pertains to 'automatic' reordering.

If you are using the 'manual' reordering option, ABC Class Codes will not need to be setup unless you want to use them to help control Physical Inventory Counting.

The System Values will automatically display if the part has valid ABC Class Code assigned on the Part Inventory Location Manager frame (Reorder tab). You can enter Override Values if necessary.
### Cycle Count Codes

Module(s): Inventory Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND		
Cycle	Count Coc	les				
Cycle Codes	(Loaded 4 records)					
Code	Description					
1	1 day					
120	120 day					
60	60 Day					
90	90 Day					
	I					

Cycle Count Codes are used to determine how often a physical inventory count is performed on a particular part. A physical inventory count helps the user reconcile the difference between what is actually in inventory and what the computer shows as being in inventory.

A Cycle Count is one method of collecting physical inventory counts. These codes can be created and maintained on this frame.

After these codes are set up, they must be manually assigned to each part on the Part Inventory Parameters frame in the Physical Inventory Parameters sections.

If cycle codes have not been established previously, this is an opportunity to decide whether or not to use them after implementing FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 in order to assist with maintaining accurate inventory valuations.

### ABC Class Codes

#### Module(s): Inventory Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND
ABC Class Codes
ABC Class & Location Codes         Location Code:         FM         FM Class Code:         ABC Class Code:
Class Definition         This Code       Other Codes         Total should not exceed 100%         Line Item:         10       %         Usage Value:
Smoothing Factors Usage Factor (Value between 0 and 1): [0.950]
Service Level Factor:
Physical Inventory Parameters           Recount Quantity:         Recount Dollars:           2         \$0.00
Recount %: Cycle Count Days:
- Establish the next cycle count date

ABC Class codes are user-defined inventory movement codes assigned to stock parts used to indicate slow, medium, and fast moving parts for the purpose of reordering those parts, specifically this pertains to 'automatic' reordering. If you are using the 'manual' reordering option, ABC Class Codes will not need to be setup unless you want to use them to help control Physical Inventory Counting.

ABC Class Codes are setup at the inventory location level, meaning each location designated as an inventory location will have its own set of ABC Class Codes.

M5 supports up to 36 ABC Class Codes, but for the purposes of this example, we will use just three: A, B, and C.

### **Inventory Adjustment Reasons**

Module(s): Inventory Management

SA	VEUNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
nver	ntory Reaso	ons		
Inventory I	Reason Codes (Loaded 6 rec	ords)		
Reason Code IREC	Description Invoice Reconcile	Disabled	Send to NAPA	
NIA	NAPA		<b>~</b>	
OBS	OBSELETE STOCK			
PIC	PI count			
RTN	Return reason			
RTNW	RETURN FROM W/O			

Inventory Adjustment Reason Codes can be used to indicate why inventory was adjusted. It may be when a part was returned into stock or to a vendor or when making adjustments to inventory quantity and price.

Take the opportunity to review reasons why part adjustments might be made and establish the appropriate codes in this frame.

# **Work Order Management**

### Work Order Visit Reasons

Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸	
WO Visit	Reaso	n				
Reason Code Code: P PREVENT		Enablec				
Scheduled	Breakdown					
Field Service	Target Billing					

Work Order Visit Reasons identify the primary cause or reason for opening a work order. It is sometimes referred to as a 'Downtime Visit Reason' since the unit is in a downtime status during repairs. These reasons are entered on Work Order Main.

The visit reasons are used for reporting purposes. It is important for many organizations to track things like planned vs. unplanned work to help better allocate resources to serve their needs in the most efficient way possible.

This is a good time to decide how many valid Work Order Visit Reasons to have for FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 since this code is only used to describe the reason for starting downtime.

### Work Accomplished Codes

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

Vork Acco	omplished Co	des (Loaded 35 r	ecords)								
WAC 01	Disabled	Use for Rebuilding Components	Ignore Warranty Violations	Ignore Repeat Repairs	Show Short Lists	Restrictions Restrictions	Preparatory Work None		ime Type	Description	 -
02						Restrictions	None			INSPECT	
03					<b>~</b>	Restrictions	None	~ F	RT	REMOVE/REPLC	
04						Restrictions	None	~ [	RT	INSTALL	
05					<b>~</b>	Restrictions	None	~ [	रा	PERFORM	
06						Restrictions	None	~ [	RT	PREP SERVICE	
09					<b>~</b>	Restrictions	None	~ [		TROUBLESHOOT	
20			<b>Z</b>			Restrictions	None	~ [		TRANSPORT	
30			✓			Restrictions	None	~ [		TOWING	
35		<b>Z</b>				Restrictions	None	~ [		SMART1	
38						Restrictions	None	~ [		ANC	-
40		$\cap$	$\cap$		-	Restrictions	N	i 🗖			•

Work Accomplished Codes are the 'action' codes of the job. These codes indicate the action performed by the technician such as repair, replace, or inspect. Although there are industry standards for these codes, FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 gives users the ability to define their own WACs to comply with company policy and procedures.

Each WAC code can be given the authority to be used for Rebuilding Components, Ignoring Warranty Violations, Ignoring Repeat Repairs or used to accumulate Acquisition or Disposal Prep charges. Short Lists is used for the Direct Invoice Entry frame to designate which WAC codes will be displayed. For example, if code 03 is selected to be an Acquisition related code, the charges associated with any job with the WAC of 03 will be accumulated towards the unit's Acquisition Prep costs and ultimately the unit's total depreciable value.

The user should review all preloaded codes, deciding which to use and set the appropriate flags for warranty, acquisition or disposal actions as well as disable any codes which will not be used in FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5. The preloaded work accomplished codes are listed on the following page.

### Work Accomplished Codes (WAC)

WAC	Description	Rebuild ?	Ignore Warranty?	Prep Work?
01	ADJUST	Ν	N	A
02	ALIGN	Ν	Ν	Ν
03	ASSEMBLE	Y	N	Ν
04	BALANCE	ICE N N		Ν
05	BLEED	Ν	Ν	N
06	BRAND	Ν	Ν	Ν
07	CALIBRATE	Ν	Ν	Ν
80	CHARGE	Ν	Ν	Ν
09	CHECK	Ν	N	D
10	CLEAN	Y	N	N
11	DIAGNOSE	Ν	Ν	Ν
12	DISMOUNT	N	N	N
13	DRAIN	N	N	N
14	DRAIN/FLUSH	N	N	N
15	DRAIN/REFILL	N	N	Ν
16	FABRICATE			Ν
17	FILL	N N		N
18	FLUSH	N	N	Ν
19	GRIND	Y	N	N
20	HONE/SURFACE	Y	N	Ν
21	INSPECT	Y	N	N
22	INSTALL	N	N	N
23	LUBRICATE	N	N	N
24	MODIFY	N	N	N
25	MOUNT	N	N	N
26	PACK	N	N	N
27	PAINT	N	N	N
28	PATCH	N	N	N
29	POLISH	N	N	N
30	PURGE	N	N	N
31	REBUILD	Y	N	N
32	REMOVE/REP	Y	N	N
33	REFILL	N	Y	N
34	REFURBISH	Y	N	N
35	RELINE	Ň	N	N
36	REMOVE	Y	N	N
37	REPACK	N	Y	N
38	REPAIR	Y	N	N
39	REPLACE	Y	N	N
40	ROAD-TEST	N	Y	N
41	ROTATE	N	Y	N

42	RUST-PROOF	N	Y	N
43	SAND-BLAST	N	Y	N
44	SHARPEN	Ν	Y	N
45	STEAMCLEAN	Ν	Y	Ν
46	STRAIGHTEN	Ν	N	N
47	TEST	Y	Y	Ν
48	TIGHTEN	Y	N	Ν
49	TORQUE	Y	N	Ν
50	TOW	Ν	Y	Ν
51	TROUBLESHOOT	N	N	N
52	TUNE-UP	Ν	Y	Ν
53	TURN	Y	N	Ν
54	UNDERCOAT	Ν	Y	Ν
55	WASH	Ν	Y	N
56	WELD	Ν	N	Ν
60	MOVE UNIT	Ν	Y	Ν
61	TRAVEL	Ν	Y	Ν
70	PERFORM	Ν	Y	N
90	PREP/SERVICE	Ν	Y	А
91	PREP/DISPOSE	Ν	Y	D
92	SPECIAL FEES	Ν	Ν	Ν
99	STEREO INSTALL	Y	Y	N
DI	DISP INSPECT	Ν	Y	D
JW	CRUSH	N	Y	D
NI	NEW INSPECT	Ν	Y	A
PM	PM	Ν	Y	N

# System Codes

# Module(s): Asset Management (Components), Inventory Management, Workflow Management

·	em Codes										
vetem C	odes (Loaded 110 records)										
ystem o	odes (Loaded 110 lecolds)			Require		Part	Labor	Comm	Unit		-
Code	Description	Restrictions	Disable	Assembly	Cross Ref	Charge	Charge	Charge	Assoc	Priority	-
00	COMPLETE UNIT	Restrictions				ALWAYS	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	3	
01	AIR CONDITIONING, HEAT, VENT	Restrictions			AA	ALWAYS	ALWAYS	ALWAYS	ALWAYS	3	
02	CAB & SHEET METAL	Restrictions			BB	SOMETIMES	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	2	
03	INSTRUMENTS, GAUGES, METERS	Restrictions			CC	ALWAYS	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	1	
4	MOBILE DEVICES	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
)9	OTHER BODY	Restrictions	<b>~</b>			NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
)B	unit changes	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
OPM	Preventative Maintenance	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
0	CHASSIS	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
1	AXLE - FRONT	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
111	testing	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
12	AXLE - REAR	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
13	BRAKES	Restrictions				ALWAYS	ALWAYS	ALWAYS	ALWAYS		
4	FRAME	Restrictions				SOMETIMES	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
15	STEERING	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
6	SUSPENSION	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		
7	TYRES, TUBES, LINERS & VALVES	Restrictions				SOMETIMES	NEVER	NEVER	SOMETIMES		
18	WHEELS, RIMS, HUBS & BEARINGS	Restrictions				NEVER	NEVER	NEVER	NEVER		-

The System Codes frame allows you to create, modify and delete codes for systems. These codes are used elsewhere in FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5. For instance, job codes, used for standard jobs and work orders, consist of a work-accomplished code, a system code and an assembly.

The Component codes are loaded and maintained in the frame System/Component Codes and Part Codes are loaded and maintained in the System/Component/Parts frame.

In preparation for moving to FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5, review and adjust, add or disable any of the pre-loaded codes you need to as part of your business decision process.

# System/Components

# Module(s): Asset Management (Components), Inventory Management, Workflow Management

- System Coo	m/Components	DELETE	RELATED V						
00 Compor	nent Details (Loaded 3 records)		Job		ition Code Po	osition Code	Position Code	Position Code	
Code	Description	Restrictions	Disabled Quantity	Cross Ref Par	t Chg La	abor Chg	Comm Chg	Unit Assoc	Priority
001	System Code default values FOR SERVICE	Restrictions	NO			EVER	NEVER	NEVER NEVER	
999	FOR DISPOSAL	Restrictions	NO			EVER	NEVER	NEVER	

Units are composites of various systems. A vehicle's frame is a system, as are the brakes and air conditioning. Each system is made up of a number of assemblies. For example, a brake system's assemblies may include brake lines, front brakes and drums.

The System/Assembly Codes frame is used to create and maintain a set of codes to identify individual parts commonly grouped together in a system. M5 comes delivered with a set of codes based on the American Trucking Association (ATA) standards.

You can use these codes or design your own codes to better meet the needs of your organization. This frame also gives you the ability to define Position Code requirements when work is being performed on a specific System/Assembly. You can also designate which Position Codes are valid for the System Assembly on the System/Assembly Positions frame.

### Job Status Codes

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

ob Statu	s Codes (Loaded 27 records)											
itatus	Description JOB AND DAY ARE DONE	Priority	Rank	Allow Work Order Completion	Require Complaint Note	Require Cause Note	Require Correction Note	Create Vendor Gateway Ticket	Require Booking Authorization	Exempt from Planning calculations	Disabled	
AN	CANCEL	2										
NR	COMPLAINT NOTE REOD	- 0		0							0	
ON	JOB IS COMPLETE	1						0				
TF	NO TROUBLE FOUND	0			Π	n	0		0	0	Ö	
23	QA CHG TEST FOR Q23	3								0		
49	QA CHG TEST FOR Q49	3								Ö		
54	QA ADD TEST FOR Q54	3			Ō	Ō	Ō	Ō	Ō	Ō	0	
65	QA CHG TEST FOR Q65	3								0	<b>Z</b>	
73	QA ADD TEST FOR Q73	3		<b>2</b>								
88	QA ADD TEST FOR Q88	3		<b>2</b>								
CC	TEST CLOSE & COMPLET	4		<b>2</b>								
ow	TOW TO/FROM SHOP	4									<b>~</b>	
EN	AT VENDOR	4		<b>V</b>								
/FA	WAITING FOR ASSIGN	3					0					
/FC	WAITING FOR COMM CHG	1		<b>Z</b>								
VFD	WAITING FOR DECISION	2										

The Job Status Codes frame allows you to create and maintain codes to indicate a job's progress or level of completion on a Work Order.

New codes can be created and defined as needed but M5 includes some hard coded status codes that are required by other modules and cannot be modified.

BYE, CAN, DON, VEN, WFA, WIP, and WR are all grayed out and their descriptions and priorities cannot be changed. Certain flag checkboxes are able to be changed, but others are not. Flags that are cannot be modified will also appear grayed out.

If using real time labor capture, the mechanic would be changing the status while the work is being done. The job status can then be reported to show how much time was spent for instance, waiting for space in the shop, waiting for parts and waiting for a decision as opposed to the actual work in progress or real labor time.

**NOTE:** You must have a job status of WR. FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 requires that all jobs must be set to either 'DON' or 'WR' (create a work request) before allowing you to close a work order or a status of BYE, if the real time labor capture is used to record time on work orders. The preloaded job codes are listed on the following page.

#### **Job Status Codes**

Status Code	Description
DON	JOB IS DONE
HRT	WORKER INJURED
WFA	WAITING FOR ASSIGNMENT
WFD	WAITING FOR DECISION
WFI	WAITING FOR INSTRUCTION
WFL	WAITING FOR LABOR
WFP	WAITING FOR PARTS
WFS	WAITING FOR SPACE
WFT	WAITING FOR TOOLS
WFU	WAITING FOR UNIT
WIP	WORK IN PROGRESS
WND	WORK NOT DONE

### Job Reasons

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED ~
Job Reasons
Code: P PREVENTIVE MAINT - S Enabled V
External Data         Required: Caption:       Allow Link Job: Project Code Required:         No       Yes
System Flags         Ignore Warranty Flag       Target Billing       Cannot be Driven         ✓       □       □
Exclude Part Usage from Automatic Reordering Calculations
Reporting Classification
Maintenance Type: Maintenance 🗸
Maintenance/Non-Maintenance
Corrective Preventive Warranty

The Job Reasons frame allows you to create and maintain a list of Job Reason Codes to define why a job is being performed.

It is possible you can have multiple jobs on the same work order and each job has a different reason it is being performed on the unit. The Job Reason Codes allow you to differentiate between jobs for reporting and cost analysis purposes.

It is important to carefully review all codes loaded in this table and to select appropriate settings for each code to be used or to disable those that appear to be inappropriate for FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 use. The following job reasons are preloaded in M5:

Visit Reason	Description	Maintenance Flag
В	BREAKDOWN	Μ
D	DRIVER REPORT	Ν
М	WEATHER	Μ
Ν	NORMAL WEAR	Μ
Р	PREVENTIVE	Μ
R	NEW VISIT REASON	М
W	WARRANTY	Μ

# Parking Spots

### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND			
Parking S	Spots				
Parking Spots Parking Location: ACC M	acc main				
ACC M Parking Spor	ts (Loaded 0 records)				
Spot	Description		Concurrency Warning 🗸	Disabled	

System Flag 5236 determines if parking spots will be validated fields to be designated on the work order on Work Order Main.

### **Employee Groups**

Module(s): Workflow Management	, Employee Management

Inployee Group	UNDO REFRESH ee Group ployee Group Code: ST ss (Loaded 147 records)	1 DELETE	FIND				
Employee No	Employee Name	Location	Shift Job Title	Skill In Other Group	Include	<b>^</b>	
00102279		FM	1	NO			
00133408		FM	1	NO			
6655		FM	76 SUPERVISO	R NO			
02036	ALCON TAXABLE	FM	3	YES			
041587	and the second second	FM	255 SUPERVISO	120	Image: A start and a start		
102776	and the second second	FM	81 SUPERVISO	R NO			
<u>D104</u>	a constant of the second se	FM	170 DRIVER SUF	ERVISOF 10 NO			
01925	and a second second	FM	170 TECH 2	5 NO			
<u>21925</u>	and a second second	FM	170 TECH 1	5 NO			
<u>11031981</u>	and the second se	FM	2 DRIVER	7 NO			
AW-1234	the second second	FM		YES			
11031980	and the second se	FM	2 DRIVER	7 NO			
EMP4	And a second second	FM	208 TESTING	5 YES			
BUM	the second se	FM		NO			
11031979		FM	100 DRIVER	7 NO			
01065482	the second se	FM	10 State Prog A			-	
010					_	•	

The Employee Group frame allows you to create and maintain groups of employees who share a common location for the purpose of assigning the group to jobs.

The Employee Number is a hyperlink that will take you to Employee Main. Select the Include checkbox to include the employee in the specific group.

**In Other Groups** - If this field displays 'No', then the employee is not in any other employee groups. If it displays 'Yes', the employee is in other employee groups. You can hover over the word 'Yes' to display a tool tip with the names of the other employee groups.

### **Repeat Repairs**

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

	RESH DELETE FINE			
Repeat Repairs				
Query Parameters System: Component:				
MCC: Tech Spec:				
Find				
Repeat Repair Codes (Loaded 0 records)				
Repeat Repair Codes (Loaded 0 records)				
		Time Back	Usage	Max 🚃
Sys-Comp Description	MCC Tech Spec	Time Back (Day(s))	Usage Back	Max Repeats
Sys-Comp Description	MCC Tech Spec		Usage Back	Max mepeats
Sys-Comp Description	MCC Tech Spec		Usage Back	Max Repeats
Sys-Comp Description	MCC Tech Spec		Usage Back	Max Repeats
Sys-Comp Description	MCC Tech Spec		Usage Back	Max Repeats

The repeat repairs frame is used to setup and maintain repeat repairs based on Tech Spec and MCC.

When a work order is opened for a unit with a job code that qualifies as a repeat repair, a warning message will appear showing detailed information such as the last work order number where the job was performed, elapsed days since the last repair and the elapsed usage.

The warning will also appear if the job has been added on the fly using Labor Wedge and if the job originated as a work request.

### **Position Codes**

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

Description     Image: Constraint of the second secon	Position Codes (Loaded 6 records)	SAVE	UNDO	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸
1     RIGHT REAR INSIDE       2     RIGHT REAR OUTSIDE       FL     FRONT LEFT       FR     FRONT RIGHT       RL     REAR LEFT	Description     Image: Constraint of the second secon	Positi	on Codes			
1     RIGHT REAR INSIDE       2     RIGHT REAR OUTSIDE       FL     FRONT LEFT       FR     FRONT RIGHT       RL     REAR LEFT	1     RIGHT REAR INSIDE       2     RIGHT REAR OUTSIDE       FL     FRONT LEFT       FR     FRONT RIGHT       RL     REAR LEFT	Position Code	es (Loaded 6 records)			
FL FRONT LEFT FR FRONT RIGHT RL REAR LEFT	FL     FRONT LEFT       FR     FRONT RIGHT       RL     REAR LEFT	Position 1				
FR FRONT RIGHT RL REAR LEFT	FR FRONT RIGHT RL REAR LEFT					
RL REAR LEFT	RL REAR LEFT					
RR REAR RIGHT	RR REAR RIGHT					
		RR	REAR RIGHT			

The Position Codes frame allows the user to create and maintain position codes that can be associated with valid systems and/or system/assembly codes. The Position Codes are used to associate a position to a transaction such as a labor charge, commercial charge or part charge to a job on a work order.

For example, a mechanic may be working on a brake job. There are positions for each brake, front right, front left, right rear, left rear.

This frame allows you to create and maintain a list of these codes that you can configure to meet your needs. These Position Codes can be associated to System and System/Assembly Codes on a work order transaction.

Using the two system frames referenced above you can also make entry of these position codes required when a certain System or System/Assembly code is used on a work order job.

System Flag 5016 determines if the position code field will display on the Part Issue tab of Work Order Main and Part Request frame. If this flag is set to Advanced multiple position codes can be entered when the system or system/assembly code ALWAYS requires a position code entry and the quantity exceeds one.

# Symptom Codes

### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO	DELETE	FIN	ID RE	elated 🗸		
Sympt	tom Code						
Symptom Cod	des (Loaded 16 records)						
Code	Description	Job	Job Reason	Disabled	Assoc Symptom Code	Comment	
01	Overheating	01-03	D		<u>0</u>		
02	Low oil pressure				<u>0</u>		
03	default	01-03	D		<u>0</u>		
03 04	default Brakes	01-03	D		<u>0</u> 0		

The Symptom Code frame allows the user to create symptoms for Work Request Incidents. The user may choose a valid code that describes a problem with a unit. The symptom code and description is user defined.

It can be linked to a job code and job reason along with comments. If the job code and reason are present on the symptom, a work request will be generated right away when the symptom is chosen on the Incident frame.

### Symptom Asset Class

### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND RELATED ~
Sympto	m Asset Class	
Symptom Code – Symptom: 01	Overheating	Disabled: No 🗸
Asset Class Code	s (Loaded 8 records)	
Asset Class A	Description AUTOMOBILES	Job Reason Job Comment III A D CN-01
ATF	мот	P 03-02 04-02 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-04 04-0
В	LIGHT TRUCKS	1 01-01-001 01-17 02-42
В	LIGHT TRUCKS	01-01-001 01-17

Since an asset class will have many symptoms codes associated to it, the Symptom Asset Class frame contains the validated field for the symptom code to be used on the Work Request Incident frame.

### **Request Source**

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Request	t Source		
Report Source (Los	aded 8 records)		
Request Source	Description	Disabled	
CLEVER AVM DISPATCH	CLEVER INTF Dispatch		
ECU	Engine Control Unit		
GHND	Greyhound Testing		
OPERATOR	Operator		
SCO	Service Center Operations		
SHOP	Repair garage		
ZZZ	Source/No Symptom		

The Request Source frame describes the person that reported the Work Request Incident. Examples of sources are, operator, dispatch, call center, public and mechanic.

### Source Symptom Maintenance

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO <b>REFRESH</b> DELE	FIND
Source Syr	mptom Mainten	ance
,		
-Source Name		
Source:	New state	Disabled:
DISPATCH	Dispatch	No 🗸
Symptom Codes (Loade	d 7 records)	
Symptom Code	Description	Priority
01	Overheating	5
02	Low oil pressure	5
03	default	5
04	Brakes	5
05	Flat tire	5
07	tested	5
FLAT	flat tire	

The Source Symptom Maintenance frame allows the user to associate the source with the symptom code to be used on the Work Request Incident Frame. There are times when a source such as a dispatch person should have access to different symptoms codes than another source such as a driver.

### System Positions

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

	ELETE FIND
System Positions	
Code: 01 AIR CONDITIONING, HEAT, VENT	
Position Codes	valid Position Codes
1 - RIGHT REAR INSIDE 2 - RIGHT REAR OUTSIDE 2 - RIGHT REAR OUTSIDE	LEFT FRIGHT LEFT

The System Positions frame is used to designate which Position Codes are valid for a System Code and which Position Codes are not valid.

These Position Codes are created and maintained on the Position Codes frame and the System Codes are setup and maintained on the System Codes frame.

The codes are used to associate a position to a transaction such as a labor charge, commercial charge or part charge with a job on a work order. For example, a mechanic is working on a brake job. Brakes exist at certain positions relative to the whole unit such as right front, left front, left rear or right rear.

The mechanic will be prompted for what position is being worked on. (The actual choice of when the user will be prompted for a position is on the System and System/Assembly frames). This frame provides the opportunity of defining which positions are valid for the System.

### System/Component Positions

### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH DELETE FIND	
System/Comp	oonent Positions	
00-001 FOR SERVICE		
Valid Position Codes	Position Codes Invalid Position Codes	
1 - RIGHT REAR INSIDE 2 - RIGHT REAR OUTSIDE	FL-FRONT RIGHT RL-REAR LEFT RR-REAR RIGHT	

The System/Assembly Positions frame is used to designate which Position Codes are valid for a System/Assembly Code and which Position Codes are not valid.

These Position Codes indicate locations on a unit, such as front, rear, side, left, or right and are created and maintained on the Position Codes frame and the System/Assembly Codes are setup and maintained on the System/Assembly Codes frame.

This frame is similar to the System Positions code except that it is used for System/Assembly combinations as opposed to just System Codes.

### Work Order Closed Reasons

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FI	ND
Closed	d WO Reason		
Adjustment Re	asons (Loaded 11 records)		
Code A	Description ACCOUNTING ADJUST	Disabled	
В	Test Reason		
С	APPLY CREDIT		
L	LABOR ADJUSTMENT		
N	UPDATE NOTES		
Р	PART ADJUSTMENT		
R	REWORK CREDIT		
U	UPDATE WORK ORDER		
V	VENDOR REPAIR ADJUST		
W	WARRANTY ADJUSTMENT		
x	DELETE JOB/WO		
			•

Work Order Adjustment Reasons/WO Closed Reasons identify when changes are being made to a closed work order on Work Order Main. These Adjustment Reasons can be used to indicate why the changes were made after the work order was closed.

The WO Adjustment Reasons frame allows you to create and maintain a list of codes for use when making adjustments to closed work orders. Only reasons that might be used for adjustments to closed work orders as previously discussed in this document should be loaded in this table.

### **Claim Cancellation Code**

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

S/	AVE UNDO REFRE	SH DELETE	FIND
Clair	n Cancellation	Code Fra	ame
Warranty	Cancellation Code (Loaded 3 records)		
Reason Code 1 2 W	Description Not Warranty Manager Decision Flagged In Error	Disabled	

Warranty Cancellation Codes are user-defined codes used to identify why a job with a warranty violation was cancelled. This frame allows you to create and maintain a list of Warranty Cancellation Codes.

If System Flag 5066 is set to 'Y' entry of one of these codes will be required when cancelling a warranty job on Work Order Main in the Warranty Notes pop-up Reason field.

### Claim Denied Codes

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

SAVE	E UNDO REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Claim	Denied Codes		
Claim Denied	d Codes (Loaded 5 records)		
Reason Code	Description	Disabled	
IREC	Invoice Reconcile		
NIA	napa		
OBS	OBSELETE STOCK		
RTN	Return reason		
RTNW	RETURN FROM W/O		

A warranty or core claim can be denied for a multitude of reasons. The Claim Denied Codes frame allows the user to define the code for better reporting.

The claim frame has a field for denial reason that can be entered using a choice of one of the valid claim denied reasons.

# Adjust Invoice Claim Reason

#### Module(s): Workflow Management

s	AVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	
Adju	ust Invoiced (	Claim	Reaso	n	
Adjust C	laim Reasons (Loaded 2 records)	)			
Code	Description Refund	Disabled			
2	Adjust Price				

In order to make an adjustment to a warranty claim that has already been invoiced, a reason is required. This frame allows you to create and maintain those codes.

# Standard Job MCC

#### Module(s): Workflow Management, Asset Management

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED V	
Standard Job	MCC	
Job / MCC		
Job Code:		
MCC:		
+ Schedule Forecaster		
Schedule Forecaster	Loc Override Subjobs	
Recurring Interval	First Time Criteria         Earliest Date:         Primary Meter:         Usage         Secondary Meter:         Usage	

The Standard Job MCC frame allows you create and modify standard jobs that for units that share a common Maintenance Class Code (MCC). For repetitive repairs you can establish a schedule for the job as well as the technical requirements for accomplishing the job. You can also establish Standard Jobs for non-repetitive repairs that occur with enough frequency that your organization can determine standard times, parts, and costs.

M5 can forecast and schedule the repetitive repairs, such as preventative maintenance tasks, via the Forecaster Batch Process so that they will appear in the Work Request queue when opening a Work Order. Non-repetitive job parameters are available when you open a work order and add the specific job code to the work order.

The MCC and Tech Spec play an important role in defining standard job parameters for a unit. The MCC determines WHEN a scheduled job should be done/completed and the Standard Job Tech Spec determines WHAT should be done when the standard job is performed.

### Standard Job Tech Spec

Module(s): Workflow Management, Asset Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND RELATED V
Standard Jobs Tech Sp	ec
Job / Technical Specification	
Job Code:	
Tech Spec No.:	
Detail Parts Test Suites Dependent Jobs	Estimates Dept Fixed Cost
Preferred Shift:	
Con this ish snan shifts:	Add this Job to all Work Orders:
Can this job span shifts:	Add this Job to all Work Orders:
Ask to change associations when completing jobs:	Ask to change base units when completing jobs:
To be sent to vendor:	Exclude From Note Enforcement:
Add this Job to all WO Express Orders:	Fixed Price:
─ Notes	
	Note Id: New Note

The Standard Job Tech Spec frame allows you to configure the technical requirements for performing a repetitive or non-repetitive standard job. Technical Specifications (Tech Specs) group mechanically identical units. For example, all 2015 Ford Pickups with the same engines, transmissions, brake systems, number of doors, and such.

You can configure the estimated times, parts needed, test suites, and attachments that are necessary for successful completion of the standard job.

The MCC and Tech Spec play an important role in defining standard job parameters for a unit. The Standard Job MCC determines WHEN a scheduled job should be done/completed and the Tech Spec determines WHAT should be done when the standard job is performed.

### Standard Job Unit/Dept/Comp

Module(s): Workflow Management, Asset Management

SAVE	D REFRESH DELET	FIND RELATED ~		
Standard Jo	b Unit/Dept/Co	omp		
Unit / Dept / Component Number Job Code:				
Schedule Forecaster	History Subjobs			
Recurring Interval	First Time Criteria Earliest Date: Primary Meter: Usage Secondary Meter: Usage			

The Standard Job Unit/Dept/Component frame allows you to create standard job parameters at the Unit Level (or Department/Component Level) or to view and make modifications to some of the parameters setup on Standard Job MCC for the unit/department/component at the MCC Level. The frame will display both MCC and Unit Level jobs as well as the Next Due Date for each job.

You can change the last completion date for a job from this frame as well as view crucial Forecaster statistics. Keeping the data on this frame accurate is essential to have the Forecaster program correctly predict preventative maintenance jobs.

### **Telematic Fault Preferred Job**

Module(s): Workflow Management, Vehicle Telematics

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE	FIND
Telematic Fault Preferred Job	
Selection Criteria	
Protocol: Element Type:           14602	
Subsystem:	-
Element: REASON	-
Sort by: Element Type	
Clear Retrieve	
Unit Fault Job List (Loaded 0 records)	
Sub Prefered No No System Element Description Job Action Fault	

The Telematic Fault Preferred Job frame displays a list of unit fault codes for a designated protocol. You can assign a Preferred Job Code and choose No Action or No Fault for each subsystem/element fault code.

The "no fault" setting is common for fault codes that are informational-only where no action would be required. M5 uses the following sequence to search for the preferred job to apply to the fault: Tech Spec Main, Category Main, Fault Preferred Job Frame and System Flags.

# **Employee Management**

### Shift Maintenance

Module(s): Employee Management, Asset Management, Workflow Management

SAV	/E UN	IDO REFR	ESH DELET	E FIND						
Shift	Mainte	enance								
- Shift										
Number: 100		10N - FRI 6 AM TO 2	2:30 PM							
Type: Employee	e 🗸									
Start Dat 02/06/20		ubtract: min 🗸 from pla	anned absences							
Shift 100 I	nformation (Load	ded 7 records)								
								Schedule	D. OLIG	
Day #	Payroll Day	OT Start Day	OT Start Time	Start Day	Start Time	End Day	End Time	Shift	Pay Shift	
1	Payroll Day Tuesday	OT Start Day Tuesday	OT Start Time 12:00 AM	Start Day Tuesday	06:00 AM	Tuesday	End Time 02:30 PM		Pay Shift 1	]
<b>Day #</b> 1 2									1 1	]
1	Tuesday	Tuesday	12:00 AM	Tuesday	06:00 AM	Tuesday	02:30 PM	1	Pay Shift 1 1	
1 2	Tuesday Wednesday	Tuesday Wednesday	12:00 AM 12:00 AM	Tuesday Wednesday	06:00 AM 06:00 AM	Tuesday Wednesday	02:30 PM 02:30 PM	1	Pay Shift 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	
1 2 3	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday	12:00 AM 12:00 AM 12:00 AM	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday	06:00 AM 06:00 AM 06:00 AM	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday	02:30 PM 02:30 PM 02:30 PM	1	Pay Shift 1 1 1 1 0FF	
1 2 3 4	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday	12:00 AM 12:00 AM 12:00 AM 12:00 AM	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday	06:00 AM 06:00 AM 06:00 AM 06:00 AM	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday	02:30 PM 02:30 PM 02:30 PM 02:30 PM	1	1 1 1 1	
1 2 3 4 5	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday	12:00 AM 12:00 AM 12:00 AM 12:00 AM 12:00 AM	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday	06:00 AM 06:00 AM 06:00 AM 06:00 AM 0ff	Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday	02:30 PM 02:30 PM 02:30 PM 02:30 PM 02:30 PM	1	1 1 1 0FF	

The Shift Maintenance frames allows you to create and maintain shift codes and payroll details for all work shift in your fleet organization. Employees, Units, and Locations can all have shifts in M5. Shifts are defined for employee and non-employee shifts. They indicate the working hours or operational hours for the entity or employee to which they are assigned.

Employee shifts define the hours an employee is expected to be available for work and are used to calculate regular and overtime hours. Employees will often have a variety of shifts including day shift, afternoon, or night. Appropriate pay rates can then be assigned to shifts if the user desires and labor time tracked.

Unit shifts specify the hours a unit is expected to be available for normal use for the using Department. The system will use these shift hours when calculating operational downtime information.

Location shifts define the hours of operation for a specific shop. The system will use maintenance location shift information when calculating maintenance downtime information.

### Shift Break Maintenance

#### Module(s): Employee Management

NUMBER.         NON - FRI 6 AM TO 2:30 PM         Shift 100 Information (Loaded 7 records)         Day #       Start Day       End Day       End Time         1       Tuesday       6:00 AM ~       Tuesday       2:30 PM ~         2       Wednesday       6:00 AM ~       Wednesday       2:30 PM ~         3       Thursday       6:00 AM ~       Thursday       2:30 PM ~         4       Friday       6:00 AM ~       Friday       2:30 PM ~         5       Saturday       Off ~       Saturday       Off ~         6       Sunday       Off ~       Sunday       Off ~         7       Monday       6:00 AM ~       Monday       2:30 PM ~	Shift	Break Ma	aintei	na	nce		
Day #Start DayStart TimeEnd DayEnd Time1Tuesday6:00 AM ~Tuesday2:30 PM ~2Wednesday6:00 AM ~Wednesday2:30 PM ~3Thursday6:00 AM ~Thursday2:30 PM ~4Friday6:00 AM ~Friday2:30 PM ~5Saturday0ff ~Saturday0ff ~6Sunday0ff ~Sunday0ff ~		MON - FRI	6 AM TO 2:30	PM			
1     Tuesday     6:00 AM     Tuesday     2:30 PM       2     Wednesday     6:00 AM     Wednesday     2:30 PM       3     Thursday     6:00 AM     Thursday     2:30 PM       4     Friday     6:00 AM     Friday     2:30 PM       5     Saturday     0ff     Saturday     0ff       6     Sunday     0ff     Sunday     0ff	Shift 100 Int	formation (Loaded 7 r	ecords)				
2Wednesday6:00 AMWednesday2:30 PM3Thursday6:00 AMThursday2:30 PM4Friday6:00 AMFriday2:30 PM5SaturdayOffSaturdayOff6SundayOffSundayOff							
4     Friday     6:00 AM      Friday     2:30 PM        5     Saturday     Off      Saturday     Off        6     Sunday     Off      Sunday     Off	2					_	
5     Saturday     Off      Saturday     Off        6     Sunday     Off      Sunday     Off	3	Thursday	6:00 AM	~	Thursday	2:30 PM	~
6 Sunday Off V Sunday Off V	4	Friday	6:00 AM	$\sim$	Friday	2:30 PM	$\sim$
	-	Saturday	Off	$\sim$	Saturday	Off	$\sim$
7 Monday 6:00 AM V Monday 2:30 PM V		Sunday	Off	$\sim$	Sunday	Off	$\sim$
	7	Monday	6:00 AM	$\sim$	Monday	2:30 PM	$\sim$
Shift 100 Break Information (Loaded 0 records)	Shift 100 Br	eak Information (Load	led 0 records	)			

A Fleet Organization's employees are normally granted breaks several times a day. These may be paid or unpaid. To automatically record these breaks against labor time performed use Shift Break Maintenance to establish the data.

### Pay Classes and Steps

Module(s): Employee Management

SAVE	UND	0 REFRESH	DELETE	FIND		
Pay C	lasses	and Steps				
Pay Codes (L	oaded 27 record	s)				
Pay Class 1	Pay Step 01	Description Class 1 Step 1				
1	3	Class 1 Step 3				
1	2	Class 1 Step 2				
100	30	Double Time				
100	20	Overtime				
100	10	Regular Time				
2	02	Test2			•	
200	30	Double Time				
200	20	Overtime				
200	10	Regular Time				
3	03	test3				
300	10	Regular Time				
300	20	Overtime				
300	30	Double Time				

The Payroll Pay Classes and Steps frame allows you to create and maintain a list of codes used to define a structure for compensation consisting of multiple classes with multiple steps in each class.

These codes are then associated to Time Types on the Pay Rates frame to define the specific rates for payroll purposes.

System Flag 5003 determines if pay class, steps are required on labor charges.

# **Payroll Rates**

### Module(s): Employee Management

save Payrol	UNDO REFR	<b>ESH</b> DELETE	FIND
Payroll Inform Pay Class: 100			
	roll Codes (Loaded 21 records)		
Time Type	Description RT	Charge/Hour \$0.00	
1	Regular Time	\$10.00	
2	Leadman	\$10.00	
3	Overtime	\$10.00	
302	EDM -MDL - Medical	\$10.00	
4	Unpaid	\$10.00	
С	check	\$10.00	
СН	(1.5x) CHG OF SCHED	\$10.00	
DT	Double Time	\$10.00	
Н	HOLIDAY (NOT WORKED)	\$10.00	
MF	MILITARY - FULL PAY	\$10.00	
0A	(1.5x) OVERTIME	\$10.00	
OT	over time - no base	\$10.00	
Р	Paid Leave	\$10.00	
PC	PERSONAL CONV	\$10.00	
RT	Regular Time	\$10.00	-

The Pay Rates frames allows you to associate the Pay Classes and Steps with the Time Types and configure a specific hourly Pay Rate for each Time Type available from the Time Type Matrix.

To associate a particular pay rate with a pay class and setup, the payroll rate frame must be setup.

### Payroll Time Types Module(s): Employee Management, Workflow Management

	SAVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELE	re e	IND			
	UNDO	REFRESH	DELE					
im	e Types							
	e Types							
Гime Ту	pe Information (Loaded 25 reco	ords)						
Code 01	Description RT	Disabled	Exclude from OT	Rate Adjust	Base Hours	Temp Not Allowed	Max Hours Other Data	
1	Ri Regular Time						8	
2	Leadman	- 0	0				0	
3	Overtime		Ō				0	
302	EDM -MDL - Medical				<b></b>		0.3	
4	Unpaid		<				0	
А	test						24	
С	check						0	
СН	(1.5x) CHG OF SCHED			<b>~</b>			0	
DT	Double Time				Image: A start and a start	<b>Z</b>	0.3 100	
G	Golfing					<b>2</b>	0	
GG	TEST						0	
н	HOLIDAY (NOT WORKED)					<ul><li>✓</li></ul>	0	
MD	Medical						3	
MF	MILITARY - FULL PAY					<ul> <li>✓</li> </ul>	0	
0A	(1.5x) OVERTIME						3	

The Payroll Time Types frame allows you to define and configure the various time types that will be used for recording labor for payroll processing.

The various pay scales are user-defined. Some examples would be, 'Regular Time', 'Overtime', Double-Time'. Only one default can be chosen on the Time Types Matrix.

Most companies chose the "Regular Time" as the Base Pay. System Flag 5003 determines if time type is required on labor charges.

# Time Type Matrix

Module(s): Employee Management, Workflow Management

	SAVE		UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	
Time Type Matrix							
Ti	ime Type M	atrix (Loa	ded 22 records)				
B	ase Pay	Default	Overtime 1.5x	Doubletime 2x	Default Setting for Forwarding Labor to the Payroll System		
0	01		OT	DT	Ö		
1	 >		0T	1			
3			3	3			
3	302		1	1			
4	1		4	4			
4			A	Α			-
			-	1-			-

The Time Type Matrix frame allows you to define the various pay scales that your organization will have available to use on payroll for all your work shifts. These pay scales are defined using the Time Type codes for regular time, overtime, or double-time.

The Matrix is also used to decide which of these types will be the default time type. Most companies chose a Regular Time type as the default.

### Labor Unions

Module(s): Employee Management

SAV	E UNDO REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Labor	r Union		
Labor Union	s (Loaded 3 records)		
Union No 102	Description UTILITY WORKERS UNION AMERICA	Disabled	
123	BRM Union QA		
235	Tester		

The Labor Unions frame is used to create and maintain codes to identify different labor unions that employees in your workforce might belong to. These Labor Union codes can be assigned to employees on Employee Main by using the Assignment tabs.

Labor union codes are used to report labor time worked for an employee who belongs to a specific union. These codes are not required.
# **Employee Main**

#### Module(s): Employee Management, Asset Management, Workflow Management, Inventory Management

oloyee	Information Name:	ו		Status:	~		
General	Assignment	Payroll	Subordinates	Resource Type	Driver Information	Motor Pool	
Title:			Skill Level:	Shift Code			
_	Rate Inform d to Charge Tim		ayroll rates: Mark	kup Scheme:			

Employees are personnel who operate equipment in the fleet or who perform the work to maintain it. The Employee Main frame is used to create and maintain information about each employee.

Employees are people who record time on work orders, rent motor pool vehicles or are operators of units. Employees may have additional items. Refer to the *M5 System Administration* section for more information. You can:

- Establish the employee's home location.
- Establish the employee's direct or indirect labor charges.
- Establish resource types.
- Initiate an employee transfer (you must be a supervisor to initiate an employee transfer and to display a list of your subordinates).
- Enter operator information as needed.

# **M5 General Use Codes**

There are a number of M5 configuration codes that are used throughout the application. These codes are discussed in this section.

### **Locations**

This is a schematic of the relationship between the master part record and the location records.



# Location Main

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Employee Management, Workflow Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH D	FIND ATTACH	MORE ~ RELATED ~
Location Main		
Cocation Information General Location: FM FM Parking Location	Disabled:	
General Information Configuration Hierarchy	Inventory Maintenance Product Codes	Vendor Email
Markup-Tax Scheme: Markup Scheme: Tax Scheme: Tax Exemption (CL2) (1116) (Mailing Address)	on:	
Mailing Name:	Phone:	
Test	) x	
Address 1:	Email:	
1 AW Way	park.loc@assetworks.com	
Address 2: City / State / Zip: West Chester AB 193 80	Country:	
Region:	Municipality:	
County: CHESTER		
Time Zone: EST		

Establishing locations allows you to categorize information specific to a physical place, specify a default organization for work charges, and provide security by restricting who can log in to which locations.

There are several kinds of locations. Garages or shops are used for maintaining your units. We refer to these places as maintenance locations.

- A fueling location is where fuel and other consumable products are stored.
- A parking location is where a unit is stored when it's not in use.
- An inventory location is where parts are stocked.
- A motor pool location is where a fleet of rental vehicles is managed.
- A delivery location is a location that can be used to receive new units.
- A recovery center is a location where revenues are accrued.

In addition, for purposes of tracking and reporting, these locations need not be real physical spaces but can also serve to represent a group of units. Locations can also have items.

# **Vendor Information**

### Vendor Main

Module(s): Inventory Management, Workflow Management, Employee Management, Fuel Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRES	SH DELE	TE	FIND	MORE	✓ RELATE	iD 🗸			
Vendor Informati			Status:								
General	Payable N	otes Service			Distributors	Reorder	Vendor Gateway				
Mailing Addre	255										
Address:											
City:			Si	tate: Zip	Code:						
Country:											
Region:			Cou	inty:							
Contact Infor	mation	P	'hone:		x						
Parts Conta			'hone: 'hone:		) ×		]				

The Vendor Main frame is used to create and maintain vendor records to be used in inventory management and workflow management as well as employee and fuel management.

This vendor information can be used for parts and products, commercial repairs, and unit purchases. The vendor number is also used in reordering, processing part orders, receiving of non-stock parts, and commercial charges.

The Vendor Main frame is used to add, modify, display or delete information about a vendor. This frame also includes the ability to disable and then to re-enable a vendor. This is particularly appropriate for vendors who lose a contract and are not used during the current contract term, but who continue to bid, and perhaps win the contract back the following year.

The organization should gather data for the vendor file to ensure that all necessary vendors for parts, commercial repairs and unit purchases, as appropriate, are in FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 and to take the opportunity to add or correct such items as the vendor's phone number, contact name and/or email address. FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 facilitates the use of Internet mail addresses for communication to vendors.

The vendor items table allows you to track additional information, such as, a vendor's response time, an emergency phone number, and specialty products carried by this vendor. You set up user-defined items using Item Master Definition and then assign values to those items in the Vendor Items Frame.

# Vendor Service Codes

Module(s): Inventory Management, Workflow Management, Employee Management, Fuel Management

SAVE	UNDO <b>REFRESH</b> DELET	E FI	ND			
ervice						
Service Codes (Loa	ded 26 records)					
Code	Description	Job Reason	Job	Disabled	Ind Account	<b></b>
ADR	TESTER	U			FUEL	_
AK	TEST CODE	U	01-10			
CN-SERV000	RESTRICTIONS DO NOT MATCH	0	CN-00			
CN-SERV001	SERVICE CODE 001	0				
CN-SERV002	SERVICE CODE 002	0	CN-02			_
CN-SERV003	SERVICE CODE 003	0	CN-03-001			
CN-SERV004	SERVICE CODE 004	0				_
CN-SERV005	SERVICE CODE 005	0	CN-DD			
CN-SERV006	SERVICE CODE 006 - RESTRICTED	0	CN-R1			_
CN-SERV010	RESTRICTED MCC CODES CNMCC1	0	CN-MC			
CN-SERV011	RESTRICTED ASSET TYPES UNIT	0	CN-AT			
CN-SERV012	RESTRICTED CATEGORY CODES CN01	0	CN-CC			
CN-SERV013	RESTRICTED BY CNDEPT-GROUP1	0	CN-DG			_
CN-SERV014	RESTRICTED BY TS CNTECHSPEC1	0	CN-TS			
CN-SERV999	RESTRICTED COMPONENT 01-999	0	CN-01-999			
DPH	COLAQA	0	01-01		WKSHP	
DPH2	D2	0	02-04-001			_
GLASS	WINDSHIELD REPAIR	U				
JS	JUMP START	U	73-11			_

Vendor Service Codes can be used to define the type of service provided by a particular vendor. This frame allows you to create and maintain a list of these codes that can be assigned to vendors on Vendor Main, Preferred Vendors, and for use on Service Orders as well as the Direct Invoice frames.

Example of services would be inspection shop, transmission repair, windshield replacement, engine repair and so on.

If using the Direct Invoice Entry frame, then a job reason may be required if designated on the Job Reason frame. A job code can also be entered, which will appear for the user on the Direct Invoice Entry detail line if the user did not enter a vendor SKU that resulted in a job code.

# Equipment Types/SKU

#### Module(s): Asset Management

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH DEL	.ETE FIN	ND	
Equipmer	nt Types/SKU			
- Equipment Type				
Equipment Type:	Description ELECTRIC D			
Equipment Types (Re	cord 0 of 3)			
SKU 123	Description Sears 24 Volt	Serial	Disabled	
87	RYOBI DRILL			
			Ō	
ER234Y	SKILL 24 VOLT			
ER234Y	SKILL 24 VOLT			

This is the vendor's own code for the service that can be used on a commercial contract or Direct Invoice Entry. The user creates their own equipment type along with the various vendor services/SKU.

The Equipment Types SKU frame allows you to create and maintain codes to group equipment together by functionality and identify each piece of equipment with an asset number and description.

# **Department Information**

### **Department Organization Hierarchy**

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Workflow Management, Employee Management

SAV	UNDO	REFRESH DEL	.ETE	FIND				
aa	nizational L	Jiorarahy						
yai	nizational H	herarchy						
				_				
Organizati	ional Hierarchy (Record 1 of 2	21)						
Level	Level Title	Mandatory						
1	BUSINESS UNIT	<						
2	FUND							
3	CENTER	✓						
1	WASBLANK							
5	TEST 5							
5	TEST 6		-					
,	TEST 7	$\Box$	*					
				Show disabled				
USINESS	UNIT Organizational Group	Values (Loaded 214 reco	rds)					
			-	Markup	Тах		 *	
Label	Description			Scheme	Exempt	Disabled		
01A00D		MMARY-EXG-CHG			U	U		
01A08S	NUCLEAR GENER							
	POWER OPERATI		_		U			
01A11S 01A12S	PRES & COO-PGN							
	PRESIDENT & CO	IO PGN	_		U			
01A13S 01AM6S	ASCR GROUP							
01A075	CUSTOMER & MA				U			
018010	MERGER & INTEG	RATION						

The Department Organization Hierarchy feature allows you to establish the relationship of the departments in FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 to higher-level organizations in your company's structure for reporting.

This hierarchy first defines the primary levels of the structure and then assigns groups to each level. The groups can be assigned a Markup Scheme and Tax status.

## Department Main

# Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Work Flow Management, Employee Management

	SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELET	E FIND	RELA	TED 🗸			
D	epart	ment N	lain							
	epartment In					l				
	)epartment:	Description:		S	tatus:					
Ð	General	Org Hierarchy	Quote Rules	Motor Pool	Markup Matrix	Tax Matrix	Std Job Matrix	Customers		
	- Billing Code	e Information								
	Billing Cod						Ē			
								J		
	Contact Inf	ormation					Associated Dept.	Groups (Loaded 0 records)	1	
	Phone:						Department Grou	ps 📰	1	
	E-mail Add	dress:	_ ×							
									1	
	- Work Order MCC:	Parameters						Priority Kick:		
	Tech Spec							Max Work Order Cost:		
								Markup Scheme:		
	Delivery L	ocation:						Markup Scheme:		

The Department Main frame allows you to create and maintain Department records for use with various levels of functionality throughout the M5 application:

Locations, Employees, Units, Components, Work Orders, DAF (Department Access Function) and Billing to name a few.

The Owning department or Using department controls the organizational hierarchy of the entity (location, employee and unit). Each main frame for units, employees and locations allows the user to view the current organizational hierarchy for the departments related to the entity.

A location belongs to an owning department, an employee has a home location (which has an owning department) and a unit has both an owning and using department. Departments can have items.

# **Accounting Codes**

### **Direct Accounts**

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Work Flow Management, Employee Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND		
Direct A	ccount	S				
- Direct Account Inf	ormation				 	]
Direct Account:						
Description:				<b></b>		
Disabled:				J		
No 🗸					 	

The Direct Account Codes frame is used to create and maintain direct account codes and their descriptions for use in billing activities.

These codes can be associated with Departments and Units as well as labor and inventory transactions.

On the Company Definition frame, you can set up a validated account segment list so that when a new account code is created, the user must enter it in a valid format.

In most cases, you will want to use your organization's existing chart of accounts as the basis for direct account codes. This is particularly true if you are using FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5's billing module. One Direct Account Code is preloaded in M5.

### **Indirect Accounts**

# Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Work Flow Management, Employee Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIN	ID RELATED ~
Indirect Accounts	
Account Number: Disabled:	
Time Type:	
Information Code:	
Characteristics of Indirect Code	
Fuel Charges Allowed     Work Order Entry Required	
Commercial Charges Allowed Pay-Changing Account	
Parts Charges Allowed     Union-Changing Account	
Physical Parts Inventory Account     Benefit Account	
Labor Charges Allowed     Invoice Reconciliation Allowed	
□ Forward Labor To Payroll System □ Forward To Weekly Hours	
Allow future dated transactions	

The Indirect Account Codes frame allows you to create and maintain codes to identify charges that cannot be charged directly against any revenue activities. These charges are usually considered overhead expenses.

For example, labor activities such as training, cleanup, unpaid time off or materials like shop brooms, towels, safety glasses, cleaning supplies. Lost dollars as a result of negative inventory variance or loss of fuel can be accounted for using indirect account codes. One Direct Account Code is preloaded in M5.

# Markup and Tax Schemes

### Markup Scheme

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Work Flow Management, Employee Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND				
arkup Scheme					
SCHEME1 EMPLOYEE SCHEME	isabled: No 🕶 ob Reason:				
Part Markup Labor Markup/Rate Commerc	lal Markup				
Part Markups (Loaded 8 records)	Markup	Markup	<u>^</u>		
		Markup Limit	A		
Part Markups (Loaded 8 records) Kind of Transaction	Markup Percent	Markup Limit	Â		
Part Markups (Loaded 8 records) Kind of Transaction Stock issue to unit	Markup Percent 20.00	Markup Limit	Â		
Part Markups (Loaded 8 records) Kind of Transaction Stock issue to unit Stock issue to department	Markup Percent 20.00 20.00	Markup Limit	Î		
Part Markups (Loaded 8 records) Kind of Transaction Stock issue to unit Stock issue to department Stock issue to component	Markup Percent 20.00 20.00 20.00	Markup Limit	Î		
Part Markups (Loaded 8 records) Kind of Transaction Stock issue to unit Stock issue to department Stock issue to account	Markup Percent 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00	Markup Limit	Î		
Part Markups (Loaded 8 records) Kind of Transaction Stock issue to department Stock issue to account Non-stock issue to account	Markup Percent 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00 20.00	Markup Limit			

A markup scheme is a list of markup percentages, markup limits, and labor rates that apply to each kind of transaction.

The setup frame consists of three tabs: Part Markup, Labor Markup/Rate and Commercial Markup. Leaving the markup percent blank means that the markup will come from some higher level of default. Each type of a commercial charge has its own markup percentage. The percentages must allow for at least three places after the decimal point.

Markup schemes have an effective date, and clients can change any iteration of a markup scheme, even if the effective date has passed. New iterations of a markup scheme can be create with future dates, though the user is warned if the entered date is more than one year in the future.

By design, the very first iteration of a markup scheme has an effective date of 01/01/2000. If you have created a markup scheme with more than one effective date, you may use your right mouse button to invoke the list of available effective dates per your markup scheme.

# Markup Types

Module(s): Used in Modules: Asset Management, Inventory Management, Work Flow Management, Employee Management

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND			
larkup Types						
iantap iypeo						
Markup Types (Loaded 21 records)						
Markup Type	1st Lookup	2nd Lookup	3rd Lookup	4th Lookup		
Stock issue to unit		<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch </li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸		11
Stock issue to department	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸	1	
Stock issue to component	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸	î 👘	
Stock issue to account	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸	1	
Non-stock issue to unit	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸	í 📕	
Non-stock issue to department	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸	1	
Non-stock issue to component	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸	Î	
Non-stock issue to account	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch </li> </ul>	Part Location 🗸	System-wide 🗸	1	
Labor issue to unit	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	~	~	Î	
Labor issue to department	Employee	<ul> <li>Location</li> </ul>	~	~	1	
Labor issue to component	Employee	<ul> <li>Location</li> </ul>	~	~	Î 👘	
Labor issue to account	Employee	<ul> <li>Location</li> </ul>	~	~	1	
Commercial issue to unit	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	~	~	Î 👘	
Commercial issue to department	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	~	~	1	
Commercial issue to component	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	~	~		
Commercial issue to account	Location	<ul> <li>Dept. hierarch</li> </ul>	~	~		
Labor OT issue to unit	Location	~ ~	~	~		
Labor OT issue to department	Location	~	~	~	-	-
		- 10		-	1	- 1

A markup can be determined based on a variety of markup sources, and those sources depend on the kind of transaction. The client decides on the sequence of defaults (lookups) for each kind of markup. Therefore, the part markups, the user could opt for the first default to be "part commodity", the second default to be "dept. hierarchy", but if blank, then "location", but if blank then system-wide".

For labor rates, the client could decide "employee" as the first default, but if blank then "location", but if blank then "dept. hierarchy". M5 will search for markup schemes at each level of default until a markup scheme is found with a markup value.

The options for markup types are:

- Location
- System-wide
- Part Commodity
- Unit
- Dept. Hierarchy (depends on system flag)
- Employee

The client may use each markup source only once per line. If an entire row is left blank, that kind of transaction has no markup. Each field provides a dropdown menu selection, but only those markup sources valid for a given kind of transaction will appear. At installation, the default (1st Lookup) for every transaction is "Location".

## Tax Type

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Work Flow Management, Employee Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND ax Type ax Type (Loaded 39 records)								
Tax Type (Loaded 39 records)								
Description	Tax Class	Disabled						
	TEST							
	-							
	SCG TAX TEST							
	TEST							
	_							
	_							
	FEDERAL FUEL							
	FEDERAL FUEL							
	FEDERAL FUEL							
	FEDERAL FUEL							
	FUEL FUEL							
	OTHER FUEL							
	GST							
	HST			•				

This frame is used to create and maintain a list of user-defined Tax Types to be assigned to Tax Schemes to help track and apply the various type of taxes involved with fleet maintenance for your organization.

A tax type is a description to identify a kind of tax and the recipient of the tax. A client might set up "INDIANA" to represent the Indiana State Sales tax and would identify the recipient as Indiana.

## Tax Scheme

Module(s): Asset Management, Inventory Management, Work Flow Management, Employee Management

Tax       Disable Full Tax Scheme:         315       MARCH 15TH         Effective Date:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diesel       Applied to:         Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:       Diesel	Tax         Scheme:       Disable Full Tax Scheme:         315       MARCH 1STH         Effective Date:         15/03/2016         Applied to:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diseel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Interview       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Interview       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Interview       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Interview       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Interview       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Interview       Is tax added to or subtract						
315       MARCH 15TH       No ▼         Effective Date:       15/03/2016         Applied to:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diesel ▼       Add ▼         Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)         Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)         Tax Rate(%)         1       Base Transaction         2       1         1       Cocal Fuel	Tax         Scheme:       Disable Full Tax Scheme:         [315]       MARCH 15TH         Effective Date:       No v         [15/03/2016       Applied to:         [Jack added to or subtracted from base amount:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [Diesel v       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         [1       Base Transaction         1       Base Transaction         2       1         [LocAL FUEL       10.00000         1       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount	SAVE	NDO REFRESH DELETE	FIND	) ~		
Scheme:       Disable Full Tax Scheme:         315       MARCH 15TH         Effective Date:       Ist ar added to or subtracted from base amount:         15/03/2016       Add         Applied to:       Ist ar added to or subtracted from base amount:         Disable Full Tax Rate       Add         Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)       Tax Rate(%)         Flat Rate       Flat Rate         1       Base Transaction         2       1         IOCALFUEL       10.00000         3       1	Scheme:       Disable Full Tax Scheme:         315       MARCH 15TH         Effective Date:       Ist ar added to or subtracted from base amount:         15/03/2016       Add         Applied to:       Ist ar added to or subtracted from base amount:         Disable Full Tax Rate       Add         Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)       Tax Rate(%)         Flat Rate       Flat Rate         1       Base Transaction         2       1         IOCALFUEL       10.00000         3       1	ax Schem	e				
315       MARCH 15TH       No v         Effective Date:       15/03/2016         15/03/2016       Applied to:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diesel       Add       v         Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)         Alternate         1       Base Transaction         2       1       LOCAL FUEL         3       1       LOCATION TAX         0.00000       \$33.00000	315       MARCH 1STH       No v         Effective Date:       15/03/2016         15/03/2016       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diesel       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Applied to:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diesel       Add         Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)         Alternate         1       Base Transaction         2       1         1       Discol         2       1         1       LOCAL FUEL         1       LOCAL FUEL         1       LOCALTION TAX	Tax					
15/03/2016         Applied to:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diesel       Istax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Add       Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add I	15/03/2016         Applied to:       Is tax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Diesel       Istax added to or subtracted from base amount:         Add       Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add Image: Add I		MARCH 15TH		:		
Diesel     Add       Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)       On Top of Which Line Tax Type       1     Base Transaction       2     1       1     COAL FUEL       1     DicALF FUEL       1     LOCALF FUEL       1     LOCALF TOUL	Diesel     Add       Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)       On Top of Which Line Tax Type       1     Base Transaction       2     1       1     CoALF PUEL       1     CoALF PUEL       1     LOCALF PUEL       1     LOCALF TOUL						
Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)       On Top of Which Line Tax Type     Tax Rate(%)     Alternate Flat Rate       1     Base Transaction     \$0.00000     \$0.00000       2     1     LOCAL FUEL     10.00000     \$0.00000       3     1     LOCATION TAX     0.00000     \$33.00000	Alternate       Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 records)       In Top of Which Line Tax Type       Tax Rate(%)     Flat Rate       1     Base Transaction       2     1       1     CoCAL FUEL       1     CocAL FUEL       1     LOCAL FUEL       1     LOCAL FUEL       1     LOCAL FUEL       1     LOCAL FUEL			nt:			
On Top of Which Line Tax Type         Tax Rate(%)         Flat Rate         Alternate           1         Base Transaction         \$0.00000         Flat Rate           2         1         LOCAL FUEL         10.00000         \$0.00000           3         1         LOCATION TAX         0.00000         \$33.00000	On Top of Which Line Tax Type     Tax Rate(%)     Flat Rate       1     Base Transaction     \$0.00000       2     1     LOCAL FUEL     10.00000       3     1     LOCATION TAX     0.00000						
1         Base Transaction         \$0.00000           2         1         LOCAL FUEL         10.00000         \$0.00000           3         1         LOCATION TAX         0.00000         \$33.0000	1         Base Transaction         \$0.00000           2         1         LOCAL FUEL         10.00000         \$0.00000           3         1         LOCATION TAX         0.00000         \$33.00000	Tax and Rates (Loaded 4 r	records)				1
2         1         LOCAL FUEL         10.00000         \$0.00000           3         1         LOCATION TAX         0.00000         \$33.00000	1         LOCAL FUEL         10.00000         \$0.00000           3         1         LOCATION TAX         0.00000         \$33.00000	On Top Line Which Lir	ne Tax Type	Tax Rate(%)			
3 1 LOCATION TAX 0.00000 \$33.00000	3 1 LOCATION TAX 0.00000 \$33.00000	1		10.00000			
		3					
		·		12.00000	\$0.00000		
				I	L	L	

A tax scheme is a code plus a list of tax types, with instructions on how the taxes are applied, plus the rates that apply to each kind of transaction. A warning message will appear if the user chooses to enter an effective date that is more than one year in future

After your schemes are created you will use them on different frames, depending on the product or labor configured in the scheme. Labor tax comes from Location Main for the Job Location. Part Receives and Nonstock Parts issued on the fly come from Vendor Main. Stock Part Issues come from Location Main. Fuel Issues get their tax from Location Main for in-house issues, and Vendor Main for commercial issues.

System Flags related to Tax Schemes are: 5345, 5346, 5347, 5348, 5349 and 1111.

# Email Address Maintenance

#### Module(s): Employee Management

SAVE UNDO Email Address N		LETE
Email Address (Loaded 18 r		
Email Address	Disabled	
		-

This frame allows you to create a list of valid email addresses for use throughout the M5 System. If System Flag 5249 is set to 'Y', only email addresses listed here will be valid on the various frames in M5.

# **M5 System Administration**

A detailed description of these codes can be found in the *System Administration Application User Training* guide.

# M5 System Settings

There are a number of codes that relate to the overall M5 functionality.

### Fiscal Calendar

#### Module(s): System Admin, Billing

ears Per	iods						
alendar Year							
iscal Year: 2019							
2019							
	2						
010 Billing In	ormation (Loaded 12 records)						1
UT9 Billing III							
							1
	Period	Period	Billing	Billing	Billing	Billing	
Juarter	Period Period Start Date		Billing Run Date	Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
-     !	Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019 04 01/04/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019 04 01/04/2019 05 01/05/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019 04 01/04/2019 05 01/05/2019 06 01/06/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019 05 01/05/2019 06 01/05/2019 07 01/07/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019 04 01/04/2019 05 01/05/2019 06 01/06/2019 07 01/07/2019 08 01/08/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019 05 01/05/2019 06 01/05/2019 07 01/07/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	
	Period Start Date 01 01/01/2019 02 01/02/2019 03 01/03/2019 05 01/05/2019 06 01/06/2019 07 01/07/2019 08 01/08/2019 09 01/09/2019	Period		Billing Run By	Billing Closed On	Billing Closed By	

The Fiscal Calendar frame is used to set up your organization's financial calendars. This is a crucial part of the system as it defines the periods within the fiscal year used for billing, usage, and reporting information.

You must define a fiscal calendar before you can account for revenue and expenses, run end-of-period and billing, creating budgets or enter company holidays on the Holiday Calendar frame. The fiscal calendar must be set for each year prior to the first fiscal period.

# Holiday Calendar

Module(s): System Admin, Employee Management

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE FIN	D	
Holiday	Calenda	ar			
Fiscal Year					
Holiday Infor	rmation (Loaded 0 r	ecords)			
Date	Day of Week	Indirect Account	Holiday Description	Location Group	

The Holiday Calendar frame allows you to designate days that are Company Holidays on the Fiscal Calendar. Various Employee Modules refer to these days for payroll processing.

## **Company Definition**

#### Module(s): System Admin

		ount Template	Tech Spec Template	Fuel Focus		
- Business I	Name & Address					
Corporate					Short Name:	
	orks - Street 2 ORA				Mech Srvs	
Web Add					Logo File:	
www.ass	setworks.com					
Division N						
Fleet Se	rvices					
Address:					State / Zip Code:	
998 Old	Eagle School Road				PA 19087	
Suite 12	15				Country: USA	
City:					Phone:	
Wayne					6106879202 X	
Zonar Me	echanic:					
assetwo	rks					
Slogan						
Slogan						

The Company Definition frame contains address and other pertinent information used when printing reports or "invoices" and when displaying header information on company documents generated by FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5.

An accounting template and or tech spec structure can also be set up as needed. System Flag 5268 must be set to Y in order to use the tech spec template.

# System Flags

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
System Flags	
System Flags Information	
Flag No: 1012	
Description: Define the Number of Fiscal Periods	
System Module: SYSTEM MANAGEMENT	
Format: Integer	
M5 Release:	
Default Value: 12	
User Value:	
System Flags Notes:	
System The system provides for a fiscal year of either 12 or 13 periods. The Number of fiscal periods flag controls whether your fiscal calendar has 12 or 13 periods. It is recommended that the number of periods coincide with your financial systems.	

A number of modules have flags you can set to control how FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 operates. Each flag has a default setting and must be reviewed for changes. The System Flags must be carefully reviewed with the project team and careful decisions made on the nature of the flags to provide accurate functionality of the system to the users.

The training and project management team from AssetWorks will make recommendations based on common business practices.

The system flags can be changed at any time during implementation and in the future if needed, however some flags are hard coded and serious consideration and planning must be done before making any changes.

There are also a few system flags that cannot be changed once transactions have commenced, such as those flags that indicate how to cost or price things.

### **Item Master Definition**

Modules(s): All

SAVE UNDO	refresh Definiti		DELETE	FIND			
Unit Item Information (Loaded 222 r	records)						
Item	Туре		Mandatory Item	Validated Value	Default Value	Disabled	<b>^</b>
5205 UNIT ITEM	Character	$\sim$		<b>~</b>	NO		
6401_PACKER#	Character	$\sim$		<b>~</b>	5		
ADVERTISING VINYL WRAP	Character	$\sim$					
AERIAL SERIAL NO	Character	$\sim$			TEST		
AIM2 EQUIPPED	Character	$\sim$			UNKNOWN	-	
ASSIGNED PROJECT LEADER	Character	$\sim$		<b>V</b>	UNKNOWN		
AUTO PASSENGER COUNTER	Character	~		<b>~</b>	UNKNOWN		
AUXILIARY ENGINE MAKE	Character	$\sim$		<b>V</b>	UNKNOWN		-
			0				•
		Value			·····		

The Item Master Definition frame can be used to create and maintain a list of data items that can be assigned to M5 system records on the various Item frames for a wide range of entities.

These entities include: Accident, Category, Component, Contract, Department, Driver, Employee, Incident, Location, Motor Pool, Part, Purchase Order, Tech Spec, Unit, Vendor, Work Order.

You can require specific information for these data items that must be entered and will be validated by the system.

For example, when creating a new employee profile on Employee Main, you can make the entry of an internal employee code mandatory. You would define this internal employee code here on this frame as an Employee Item.

Version 24.x

### Translation Maintenance

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
Translation Maintenance	
- Search Criteria	
Locale:	
Domain:	
Default:	
Translation:	
Show Translation All O When not equal the default O When equal to default	
Retrieve	
Matches (Loaded 0 records)	
Locale Domain Edit Default / Translation	

The Translation Maintenance frame is used to change the field descriptions on programs. This functionality gives our customers the ability to customize the system using existing terminology instead of using standard FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 terminology such as unit or department. An example would be our term for department might be cost center for your organization.

### State Codes

#### Module(s): System Admin

SA	VE UNDO REFRES	DELETE	FIN
State	e Codes		
Country C	odes (Loaded 10 records)		
Code 1 123 2 3	Country USA NUMERIC CANADA GREAT BRITAIN	State Code Length 2 3 3 3 3	•
Valid State	e Codes (Loaded 0 records) de Description		

The State Codes frame is used to create and maintain a list of State Codes that are associated with a Country Code. M5 is delivered with the state codes for both the United States and Canada already set up. State and Country Codes are used throughout the system as a part of location and addressing functions.

Page 130 of 168

# Time Interval

#### Module(s): System Admin

Time (Loaded 49 recor	ds)					
Table Name	Column Name	Description	Default Unit	User Select Unit		
ACC_LAB_CHG	DURATION	Labor duration	Months	Months	~	
ACC_LAB_CHG	TOTAL_TIME	Labor Entry Total Time	Hours	Hours	~	
CALC_FIELD	DIFF_IN_OUT	Labor Entry Diff In Out	Hours	Minutes	~	
CALC_FIELD	ELAPSED_TIME	Calculated Elapsed Time On CL	Hours	Hours	~	
CATEGORY	DEPREC_TERM	Category Depreciation Term	Months	Months	~	
CATEGORY	EXPECT_DT	Category Expected Life	Years	Years	~	
CATEGORY	FINAN_TERM	Category Financing Term	Months	Months	~	
CATEGORY	LEAD_TM	Category Lead Time	Months	Months	~	
CURR_LABOR	PUNCH_TIME	Labor Wedge Time on Job	Hours	Hours	~	
LOC_GEN	MP_RESV_LATEHRS	Late Pickup Hours	Hours	Hours	~	
LOC_GEN	RES_ADV_NOTICE	MP Reservation Advanced Notice	Days	Days	~	
LOC_GEN	RES_DURATION	MP Reservation Duration	Days	Days	~	
LOC_MAINT	ASSOC_PM_DURATN	Maintenance Location PM Due	Days	Days	~	
MCC	MAXLABOR_DT	Maintenance Class Code	Hours	Hours	~	
MCC_SCHED	TIME_INTER	MCC schedule interval	Days	Days	~	
MPOOL	ELAPSED_TIME	elapsed time on Motor Pool	Hours	Hours	~	
MP CLASS	PREP DURATION	MP Prep Period	Davs	Days	~	•

While time is managed in milliseconds in FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5, the Time Interval frame is used to change how the time is displayed from various time fields throughout the system. Each table and column name is listed with a default unit.

The time unit may be changed using the selections provided. No entry is required here although the defaults should be reviewed. A specific example of why this is important is labor reporting for timekeeping.

# Time Zones

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE	UNDO	SH DELETE FIND		
Time 2	Zones			
Time Zones ()	Loaded 6 records)			
Time Lones (			-	
Code	Description	Minutes Offset from Database Server		
AST	Atlantic Time	240		
CST	Central Time	120		
EST	Eastern Time	180		
HST	Hawaii Time	-180		
MST	Mountain Time	60		
PST	Pacific Time	0		

Time Zones are maintained in FleetFocus<sup>™</sup> M5 to offset the time interval between the time zone of the client and the time zone of the database server.

This makes reporting on transactions more accurate. In the example above the database server is located in the Pacific Time Zone as illustrated by the fact that EST has an offset of 0 minutes. The time zones are assigned to locations in Location Main.

### System Mask Maintenance

#### Module(s): System Admin

ask Mai	ntenance					
Warning offe	r maak values are shanged you mu	st logoff and on again to have the char	ages applied to your cossion			
warning - arte	i mask values are changed you mu	st logon and on again to have the chai	iges applied to your session			
iguage:	_					
-US - English	~					
aintenance (Loaded 1	16 records)					
	,	-		-	[100000]	_
flask ID ClientDate	Default mm/dd/yyyy	Custom	Last Changed 07/10/2020 13:01:36	By 110005083		<u> </u>
lientDateMD	mon-dd	dd/mm/yyyy	07/02/2017 11:07:10			
lientDateMY	mon-yyyy		07/02/2017 11:07:29			
lientDateTime	mm/dd/yyyy hh24:mi:ss	dd/mm/yyyy hh24:mi:ss	07/10/2020 13:01:36			
ileExtension	CSV	uu/mm/yyyy mi24.mi.ss	09/12/2005 03:53:11			
ileExtension	doc		09/12/2005 03:53:11	M5		
ileExtension	pdf		21/07/2006 10:19:58			
ileExtension	rtf		09/12/2005 03:53:11			
ileExtension	txt		09/12/2005 03:53:11			
ileExtension	xls		09/12/2005 03:53:11	M5		
hone	(@@@)\$@@@-@@@@@		08/02/2017 13:06:39			
SN	***_***		09/04/2007 20:03:51	M5		
erverDate	mm/dd/yyyy		22/07/2019 10:20:13			
erverDateTime	mm/dd/yyyy hh24:mi:ss		14/05/2019 10:50:05			
	*****	*** ***	13/10/2011 11:39:24	001		-

The System Mask Maintenance frame contains the formats for displaying time settings, date settings, currency, phone number, and address values on frames and reports (AssetWorks provides default settings, however, our customers located outside of the U.S. will need to configure these settings accordingly).

The most common change made in System Mask Maintenance is how the date is displayed. The Client Date Mask controls this display.

# **M5 System Security**

### Role Maintenance

Module(s): System Admin, Employee Management

SAVE	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND ATTACH RELATED V										
Role N	ole Maintenance										
- Role Informat	tole Information										
Role: CSI	tole: Description: CSI ES										
General	Locations/ Oper Entities	Menus/ KPI	Privileges	Reporting	Application Users	Departments/ Chat Groups	Vendor Gateway	Indirect Accounts			
General Ir	formation			-							
Notes											
DO NOT	DELETE					7					
						/					
Restrict	ed Home Page:										
Outside	User: Two	Factor Auth	entication:								
	e User Id:			_							
CSI				CSI							
	Maximum Allowable PO Line Value:										
\$10.00											
Maximu \$40.00	m Allowable Tota	I PO Value:									
Maximu \$5,000	m Comm WO Aut	th Amount:									
45,000											

The Role Maintenance frame is where the System Administrator will create and maintain the Roles that assign the menus and privileges used for controlling access to your M5 System.

Roles are assigned to individual Application Users to determine what they can and cannot do or access within the M5 System.

## Location Groups

Module(s): System Admin, Employee Management

Security Location Group Location Group Name: FM © Number © Name © Locations Roles Assigned Locations Multiple Locations in group FM - FM Parking Location
Name:   FM
Assigned Locations
Locations not included

The Security Location Groups frame defines a group of locations. The Security Location Group is assigned to the role. If a location is added or deleted from the group, it becomes effective for all users within that group.

The location group should be created keeping in mind what functions the users will be allowed to do within each location. For example, Shop Managers may only be allowed access to certain locations.

# **Operational Entity Groups**

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸				
Operatio	nal Ent	ity Gro	ups						
Operational Entity G Operational Entity CHSTEST									
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Operational Entities     Roles  Assigned Operational Entity Groups (Loaded 1 records)								
Operational Enti CNDEPT001		cription Department 001							

The Operational Entity Group frame allows you to create and maintain Operational Entity Groups to assign to user roles. They are used in much the same way as Location Groups (for example, for querying or reporting purposes and restricting user access). Operational Entity Groups are used in the Unit Availability module.

From this frame, you can also control access for entry of confirmation counts on Availability Unit Confirmation. In order to grant access for confirmation counts, you must assign an Operational Entity Group to the user's role.

**Note:** An "Operational Entity" is determined by the value of System Flag 2032 (using or owning department).

### **KPI/PMM Groups**

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE	FIND RELATED ~	
KPI/PMM Groups		
Group		
Group: INTERFACE Group Type © KPI O PMM		
KPI Names Roles		
Assigned KPI Names (Loaded 1 records)		
Name Description INTERFACE REJECTED TRANSAC <sup>®</sup> Rejected NWF transactions		

The KPI/PMM Groups frame allows you to create and maintain a set or group of similar Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and Performance Measure Monitors (PMM). After this group is created it can be assigned to an Application User's specific Role.

This is a helpful management tool for assigning KPI/PMM access to users with similar job functions. The Performance Measure Monitors are trend indicators and require an additional license.

# **Report Groups**

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸					
Report Group									
Report Groups (Loaded 19 records)									
Report Group									
ADMINISTRATOR									
BILLING									
COMMERCIAL									
CUSTOM									
CUSTOMER									
DEPARTMENT									

The Report Groups frame allows you to create groups for reporting purposes, specifically for scheduled reports produced for multiple users. Rather than each user running the report, M5 gives you the ability to schedule a report one time and have it pushed out for viewing to the designated report group.

After the report finishes running, a copy is stored in each user's Report Bin on their Home Page. The user running the report does have the option to keep the report private or to send to others.

# **Printer Groups**

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	RELATED 🗸				
Printer Groups									
Printer Group									
Name: PRINTER TEST GROUP									
Printers Roles									
Assigned Printe	rs (Loaded 3 record	ls)							
Printer CANON2 CANON3	Description canon2 canon3		Ē	Ħ					

The Printer Groups frame gives you the ability to create and maintain sets or groups of printers for use in Crystal Reports. Each printer on the Printer Definition frame must be assigned to a Printer Group to be used in Crystal Enterprise.

# Adhoc Group Maintenance

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED V	
Adhoc Group Maintenance	
Adhoc Group	
Name: GROUPD1 Order by Order by Domain O Name	
Objects Roles	
Excluded/Included Database Objects	

The Adhoc Group Maintenance frame defines which views the users can view and report on within the Adhoc Query reporting tool. After the Adhoc groups are defined, it can be added to the roles using the Roles tab on the Adhoc Group Maintenance frame.

### Adhoc Object Maintenance

Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH DELETE	FIND	МО					
Adhoc Object Maintenance								
Available AdHoc Objects (New record number 247)								
Adhoc Object	Adhoc Domain							
ATTACHMENT_DEFINITION	TEST							
AVAILABILITY	ASSETS							
BILLING	BILLING							
BILL_CODES	BILLING							
BILL_LEAS_SUMM	BILLING							
BILL_NLEA_SUMM	BILLING							

The Adhoc Object Maintenance frame is used to create and maintain the list of data sources for Adhoc Reporting. The data sources are a view of the M5 date, not the physical tables.

These AdHoc Objects can then by applied to Adhoc Groups to define which data sources the users can view and report on based on their role.

# **Department Groups**

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE	IDO REFRESH DELETE FIND RELATED V								
Departmen	Department Groups								
Department Group									
Name:	Order by Number O Name								
Departments     Rol	S								
Assigned Department									

This frame allows you to create Department Groups to limit or restrict access to certain information or frames in M5. Department Groups allow for departments to be grouped together so that users can access each other's records.

If the department is not in a user's Department Group, the user will not be able to view Employees, Departments and Units that belong to that department. The User tab on this frame shows which database users are allowed to access the Department Group.

### Menu Maintenance

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO	REFRESH DELETE FIND							
Menu Maintena	Ienu Maintenance							
Filter		Drag Mode: ● Move ◯ Duplicate						
i∃ 😋 ROOT	Authorization Security Level Security Template Reauthenticate Group Read / Update / Full on save	Confirm Drag Actions						
E- C		Confirm Add Actions						
÷- 🗀 +		Confirm Delete Actions						
🗀 🖣								
B- 🛄 I		Current Node:						
		Delete						
÷ 🛄		Rename Folder						
😐 🗀 1		New Child Folder						
B- 🔁 1		New Sibling Folder						
8- 🛄 : 8- 🛄 /		New Frame or Link						
B- 🛄								
i - 🔂 (		Manage Security Templates						
۰ 🗀 ا		Authorized Roles						
B- 🗀 I								
⊕- <b>(</b> ) ⊕- <b>(</b> )								
	 ✓							

The Menu Maintenance frame allows you to fully customize your user menus. Customizing menus in the M5 System allows your System Administrator to control which menu functions the application user can access.

They can be limited to very specific fields within certain frames that display only the functionality needed by the application user to perform their job duties. This approach helps the user navigate efficiently through the system.

When you first implement your M5 System you will need to create your own menus. M5 comes with a Sample Menu for your reference.

**Note:** Do not modify the sample menu. It is there for your reference and it is a great resource. If you modify it, you will lose the references it contains.

### Database User Maintenance

Module(s): System Admin

	SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND	More 🗸	
D	atabas	e User	Mainte	nance			
	User Information - User ID:						
	Description:						
	Status: Password:	~					
L E	Used By Roles (Lo Role	aded 0 records) Name					

The Database User Maintenance frame allows you to create and maintain the Database Users that are necessary when using Oracle for the database with your M5 System. **Note:** SQL Server does not require these database users.

After created, you can assign database users to Application User Roles and multiple Roles can use the same database user ID. Using this approach will reduce the number of distinct database users you have to create and manage. This function is normally performed by your System Administrator.

As part of the implementation planning you should consult with your Oracle DBA and create database users that are consistent in style with the current database username structure.

**Note:** M5 is delivered with a database username of CSI already created. Do not modify or delete the CSI Database User. It is used for installing and configuring the M5 system.
### **Application User Maintenance**

#### Module(s): System Admin

_					
	SAVE UNDO	REFRESH DELETE	FIND MORE .	✓ RELATED ✓	
	Application User	<sup>r</sup> Maintenanc	e		
	Application User Information				
	Application User:		Disabled:		
	Allow Web Access:				
	Password:				
	Password Expire (days):				
	User can change password:				
	Force password change next log	in:			
	Allow Mobile Access:				
	Password:				
	Adhoc Access:				
	Adhoc Starting Folder:				
	Account Expiration Date:				
	User Role: User Based Dashb	oard:			
	Idle Timeout Minutes:				

The Application User Maintenance frame allows you to create and manage the user accounts for the individuals who use the M5 System as a part of their job function within the fleet organization. It is important that System Administrators take the time to carefully define user capabilities and assign them accordingly.

Proper management and configuration of Application User IDs means controlling user access to the parts of the system they need to perform their jobs while preventing access to parts of the system that are not within the scope of their position. Through the Application User Maintenance frame, you can accomplish this by properly defining their roles and security rights.

The majority of the Application User's capabilities are "role-based." You can create and configure Application User Roles and edit privileges on the Role Maintenance frame. However, there are some additional items that you can customize at the user level after you create the Application User ID.

## Department Access Function (DAF)

#### Module(s): System Admin

DAF Codes (Loaded 2	28 records)		
Code	Description	Disabled	
		0	
and the second se			
-			
1000			
and the second se		0	-

The DAF Code Maintenance frame allows you to create Department Access Function (DAF) codes to limit or restrict access to certain frames at the Department Level. After created, you can assign these codes to individual frames on Frame Maintenance.

For example, you might want to setup a code to give read-only access to a certain Department Group on Work Order Main.

### Department Group/DAF Maintenance

Module(s): System Admin

SAVE	NDO REFR	ESH	DELETE	FI	ND	Related 🗸			
ept Group	/DAF M	ain	tenance	Э					
Department Group: ALL	nctions (Loaded 28 re	(cords)							
DAF Name	Owning Dept	,	Using Dept Acce	ss		▲			
•		,		ess		•			
DAF Name	Owning Dept	Access	Update •	_		•			
DAF Name COLATEST	Owning Dept	Access	Update •	-		•			
DAF Name COLATEST DEP-1	Owning Dept Update Update	Access	Update • Update • Update •	•					
DAF Name COLATEST DEP-1 DOUGDAF	Owning Dept Update Update Update	Access	Update Update Update Update	<ul> <li></li> <li></li> <li></li> </ul>					
DAF Name COLATEST DEP-1 DOUGDAF EMP	Owning Dept Update Update Update Update Update	Access	Update Update Update Update Update	<ul> <li></li> &lt;</ul>		•			
DAF Name COLATEST DEP-1 DOUGDAF EMP FMV-3950	Owning Dept Update Update Update Update Update Update	Access	Update Update Update Update Update Update	<ul> <li></li> &lt;</ul>		•			

The Dept Group/DAF Maintenance frame allows you to set Owning Dept Access and Using Dept Access levels for each Department Group. The Departmental Access Function (DAF) codes are setup on the DAF Code Maintenance frame.

As an example, Dep-1 group may only have 'update' access to the using departments' vehicles in their department group. Each Department Level Security code created will be listed and the choices for both Using and/or Owning departments are: update, read only, or none.

### Frame Maintenance

#### Module(s): System Admin

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
Frame Maintenance	
Report and Frame Information           URL:           /PRESENTATION/SCREENDESIGNER/PROCESS.ASPX?INF0=WORK ORDER MAIN	
Type: Audit: Frame ✔ No ✔	
Prohibited On Menu: Disabled: No V	
Description: Work Order Main	
Help URL: /MAINTENANCE/WORK_ORDER/WORK_ORDER_MAIN.HTM	
Authorized With URL:	
Component Name: mfiveUCWorkOrder.dll	
Sticky Fields: OBJNUMBER	
Dept. Access Function:	
Default Menu: /Maintenance Operations / Work Order	
Added In Version:	
Menu Liet     Deleted Hyperlinke	
Menu List Related Hyperlinks	

This frame allows the System Administrator to change the description of a frame, report or link in the M5 system. It is also used to add new frames and reports. Normally the System Administrator will not need to make changes to this frame and it is recommended that these settings be left with the default values.

When M5 is upgraded for a patch or a new release, a process called Run M5 Objects updates the Frame Maintenance frame with all new frames and reports. There is an option in this Object update that restores the frame descriptions to the M5 default values.

# **Additional M5 Module Configurations**

#### **Fuel Management**

Please refer to the *Fuel Process User Guide* for a full description of the required configuration to use this functionality. The following frames represent the major areas to be configured.

## **Product Main**

#### Module(s): Fuel Management, Inventory Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH	DELETE FIND ATTACH RELATED ~
Product Main	
i loudet Main	
Fuel Product Identification	
Number: Description:           1         GASOLINE test	
General Information	
Type: Fuel	
Unit Issue: GAL Gallons	
Markup: Flat Markup 🗸	
Associated Part:	
ADR31 TESTER2	
GAS Gasoline	
CarWeb Product?	
- Billing Defaults	- Pricing Information
Inside Bill Item:	Unit Price:
FUEL CHGS Fuel charges	\$3.123456
Outside Bill Item:	Flat Mark Up:
FUEL CHGS Fuel charges	\$0.08
Mark Up Bill Item:	Mark Up %:
FUEL CHGS Fuel charges	0.00 Overside Ctd Bries:

A consumable product is any substance used in the operation or maintenance of a vehicle. For example, gasoline, diesel fuel, oil, transmission fluid, and car wash and windshield wiper blades. You can manage your consumable products by tracking product information, including:

- The type of product.
- A description of the product.
- The unit price of the product.
- A flat markup amount (added to the inventory price).
- A percent markup amount (added to the inventory price).
- The unit of measure when the product is issued.

#### **Product Setup Location**

Module(s): Fuel Management, Inventory Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE	FIND RELATED V
Product Setup Locations	
Product Information for a Location	
Location: Location Name: FM FM Parking Location	
Product No: Description: 1 GASOLINE test	
Tank No: Tank Type:	
Group Type: Tank Group:	
Detailed Information Stock Status Use History	
Method of Tracking Stock  Inventory  Expense	
Issue Quantity Calculation Susce quantity is entered CNG volume is calculated using CNG method 1	
Stock Limits Maximum Quantity: 100000.00 Minimum Quantity: 1000.00	

The Product Setup Locations frame allows you to create and maintain valid product lists for your designated fuel locations. Before storing or issuing fuel products from a location, you must first create and define the information for location products on this frame.

You can track the maximum and minimum quantity of product that can be stored and the minimum number of days before the product runs out.

If you choose to use M5 to maintain your consumable products inventory, products, tank types, tank information and hose information must be set up. Then the system automatically tracks the unit of issue, the inventory unit price, the on-hand quantity, the on-hand value and the on-order quantity. In addition, it tracks the date of the last order, receipt, issue, transfer and physical inventory.

### Product Setup Tank Types

Module(s): Fuel Management, Inventory Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE Product Setup Tank Types Tank Information Tank Type: Tank Capacity: Needs Conversion Table: 200000	FIND ATTACH RELATED V	
1 Tank Manufacturers Information (Loaded 1 records) Manufacturer Model GAS BOY FXWQR3	1 Stick Conversion Table (Loaded 8 records)	
Additional Notes		

The Product Setup Tank Types frame allows you to create and maintain codes to identify and define the physical tanks that hold your fuel products.

Characteristics such as size, model number, and capacity are defined on this frame. You must setup tank types before you can associate products to individual tanks.

The Stick Conversion Table allows you to enter stick reading increments and corresponding values for the increments. For example, Increment 1 on the stick reading corresponds to a Quantity of 10, Increment 2 corresponds to a Quantity of 20 and so on.

## Product Setup Tanks

		<u>.</u>	-							
oal	JCt	Seti	ір Та	nks						
ocation I	oformati	~								
Fuel Loca		on								
FM		M Parking	Location							
										_
ank Infor	mation fo	or Location	FM (Loaded 3	37 records)						
		p Tank							·	
Tank No 00	туре	Group	00	Product Description test fuel	Type Type Description	Adj. Account	Account Description TEST	EVR II Enforced		
01			01	DT test	1	FUEL	FUEL	0		
1			1	GASOLINE test	1	FUEL	FUEL			
10			MG	Gallons - Oil	M	FUEL	FUEL			
10			ML	Liters - Oil	M	FUEL	FUEL	0		
11			MQ	Quarts - Oil	M	FUEL	FUEL			
11 12			IVIQ							
11 12 13			2	Unleaded Gas	1					
11 12 13 14			2 TG	Gallons - Fuel	1 T	FUEL	FUEL			
11 12 13 14 15			2 TG TL	Gallons - Fuel Trans Fluid (Liters)	1 T T	FUEL	FUEL			
11 12 13 14 15 16			2 TG	Gallons - Fuel Trans Fluid (Liters) Trans Fluid (Quarts)	1 T T					
	м		2 TG TL	Gallons - Fuel Trans Fluid (Liters)	1 T T AK T	FUEL	FUEL		Ţ	

Module(s): Fuel Management, Inventory Management

A fuel location is where vehicles obtain fuel and other consumable products. These consumable products may include gasoline, diesel fuel, oil, transmission fluid, and windshield wiper solution.

After your product information is added to the database, you can define tank numbers from which a hose draws fuel, a tank type for each tank at a specified location, the products which are stored in them, and the accounts to be charged.

You also can define hose numbers and specify whether a hose is available. In addition, you can define the number of pulses per unit of fuel, which is used to calculate the actual amount of fuel dispensed for a given transaction.

EVR II Enforced indicates Enhanced Vapor Recovery status on the tank, select the checkbox if this is to be enforced on a particular tank.

## **Fuel Types**

#### Module(s): Fuel Management

uel Type				
/				
Fuel Type (Loaded 36 reco	ords)			
Fuel Type	Description	CO2 KGPGAL	Disabled	
AL	Antifreeze Liters	0.0000		
AQ	Antifreeze Quarts	0.0000		
AVGAS	Aviation Gasoline	8.3200		
B10	Biodiesel - 10 Biodiesel, 90 Diesel	10.0810		
B2	Biodiesel - 2 Biodiesel, 98 Diesel	10.1360		
B20	Biodiesel - 20 Biodiesel, 80 Diesel	10.0120		
B5	Biodiesel - 5 Biodiesel, 95 Diesel	10.1160		
BIODIESEL	Biodiesel - 100 Percent	9.4500		
CNG	Natural Gas (CNG) per sq ft	0.0540		
COAL	Coal	30.1234		
DG	Diesel Gallons	10.1500		
DIESEL	Diesel Fuel (No 1 & No 2)	10.1500		
DL	Diesel Liters	10.1500		
E10	Ethanol - 10 Ethanol, 90 Gasoline	8.4850		
E85	Ethanol - 85 Ethanol, 15 Gasoline	6.0480		
ETHANOL	Ethanol - 100 Percent	5.5600		
FUELOIL	Residual Fuel Oil (No 5 & No 6 fuel oil)	11.8000		
GAS	Gasoline	8.8100	n	-

The Fuel Type frame allows you to create and maintain the list of fuel types defined by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and other international agencies.

AssetWorks delivers this frame loaded with the default CO2 KGPGAL values as measured by the EPA unless otherwise specified during implementation. The information here is used to support the Carbon Footprint reporting requirements in the M5 System.

The Fuel Type field exists on the Product Main frame so you can assign a fuel type to a product. This field becomes active if the user sets the Product Type equal to 'FUEL'.

## GHG On Road Setting

Module(s): Fuel Management

			ting			
HG OnRoad (Lo	oaded	704 records)				
ehicle Type		Fuel Type	Model Year	N20 GPM	CH4 GPM	
PASS_CAR	$\sim$	CNG	2002	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	~	CNG	2003	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	$\sim$	CNG	2004	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	~	CNG	2005	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	$\sim$	CNG	2006	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	$\sim$	CNG	2007	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	$\sim$	CNG	2008	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	~	CNG	2009	0.0500	0.7370	
PASS_CAR	$\sim$	CNG	2010	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	~	CNG	1984	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	$\sim$	CNG	1985	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	~	CNG	1986	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	$\sim$	CNG	1987	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	~	CNG	1988	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	~	CNG	1989	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	~	CNG	1990	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	~	CNG	1991	0.0500	0.7370	
LIGHT_DUTY	~	CNG	1992	0.0500	0.7370	-

The GHG On Road Setting frame allows the user to enter N2O and CH4 coefficients. The On-Road calculation is based on the number of miles travelled times the grams per mile coefficient for the vehicle/model year/fuel type combination.

### **GHG Off Road Setting**

#### Module(s): Fuel Management

GHG OffRoad (Loaded 13 records)						
Vehicle Type		Fuel Type	N20 KGPGAL	CH4 KGPGAL		
		AVGAS	0.1100	7.0400		
		DIESEL	0.2600	0.7400		
OTHER_EQUIP	Y	DIESEL	0.2600	0.5800		
BUS	~	DIESEL	0.2600	0.5800		
CONSTRUCTION	¥	DIESEL	0.2600	0.5800		
AG_EQUIP	Y	DIESEL	0.2600	1.4400		
LOCOMOTIVE	¥	DIESEL	0.2600	0.8000		
SHIP_BOAT	~	FUELOIL	0.3000	0.8600		
OTHER_EQUIP	¥	GAS	0.2200	0.5000		
SHIP_BOAT	~	GAS	0.2200	0.6400		
AG_EQUIP	¥	GAS	0.2200	1.2600		
CONSTRUCTION	¥	GAS	0.2200	0.5000		
AIRCRAFT	~	JET	0.3100	0.2700		
BUS	~					

The GHG Off Road Setting frame allows the user to enter N2O and CH4 coefficients. The Off-Road calculation is based on the number of gallons times the kilograms per gallon coefficient for the vehicle/fuel type combination.

# **Billing Module**

Generally, a billing workshop is conducted to fully explore the billing requirements for a client. The *Billing Application User Training Guide* contains a complete overview of the configuration required to setup billing. Aside from establishing a billing code, additional frames need to be configured.

## **Billing Items**

#### Module(s): Billing

Billing Items (Loaded 79 records)							
Bill Item 2738	Description Fixed fee - 100	Bill this charge ✓	Fixed Charges		*		
ABN USAGE	Non-accident damage		Γ				
ACCIDENT	Accident damage		Г				
ACQUIS	Unit acquisition		Γ				
ADMIN	Administrative fee	<b>~</b>	V				
ADMINFEE	Administartion Fee						
C LABOR PO	Comm Labor PO						
C LABOR017	Comm Labor Sys 017 PO		Γ				
C MISC PO	Comm Misc PO		Γ				
C MISC017	Comm Misc Sys 017 PO		Г				
C PARTS PO	Comm Parts PO						
C PARTS017	Comm Parts Sys 017 PO		Г		-		

A Billing Item groups similar types of transactions together for the M5 billing program. In general, Billing Items are grouped into 'Point-in-Time' and 'Range of Time' transactions.

For each billing item, you must select the Bill this Charge checkbox if you want to bill that particular item. If you want to bill fixed charges by using the Bill Fixed Charges frame, select the Fixed Charges checkbox.

## **Billing Item Source**

Module(s): Billing

	0							
lling Ite	m Source							
Ŭ								
Il Code								
ode:	-		Effective Date:					
009 100	9		01/10/2020					
ill Item Source (Loa	ded 63 records)							
Billing Item	Department to Bill		Revenue Accounts Source	_	Expense Account Source		 -	
ABN USAGE	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~	 <b></b>	
CCIDENT	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
COUIS	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
LABOR PO	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
LABOR017	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
MISC PO	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
MISC017	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
PARTS PO	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
PARTS017	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
TAX PO	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
CTAX017	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
CAPITAL	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
AR WASH	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
ARWASH	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
OMM CHGS	Don't Bill 🗸		Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
OMM LOC	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~		
COMM PO	Using Department	~	Unit, then Owning Department	~	Unit, then Using Department	~	-	

The Billing Item Source frame allows you to define who to bill and the sources of the revenue and expense accounts for each Billing Item for a particular Billing Code.

For each billing code, the Billing Item Source establishes whether to bill the owning department of the unit, the using department of the unit, or not to bill at all.

If a unit changes departments during the period, the point-in-time transactions (labor, fuel, motor pool) appear with the department as assigned at that time; range-of-time transactions (usage, lease) are pro-rated among the departments.

#### **Department Billing Accounts**

Module(s): Billing

The Billing Department Accounts frame allows you to define both Revenue and Expense accounts for each individual department Billing Item.

Use of this frame will depend on the value of System Flag 2060. If that flag is set to 'N', this frame will be available for use. If it is set to 'Y', you must use Bill Single Department Account frame.

For any billing item marked as billable in the "Billing Items" frame, a revenue and an expense account can be entered; neither is required.

The revenue account is usually associated with the department as an owner since the owning department typically accumulates the charges from the using department for procurement of a replacement unit.

The expense account is usually associated with the using department because, in most cases, it is responsible for the unit's costs and leases.

These accounts are created and maintained on the Direct Account Codes frame and their format might depend on the template defined on the Company Definition frame.

## **Billing Unit Accounts**

Module(s): Billing

1070 001 5 7	2041150			
1978 POLE I	RAILER			
		Show Source Legend		
~				
		)		
ts (Loaded 79 records	e)			
	5)	France Lance		
Effective Date	Source	Expense Account (default accounts displayed in bold)	Billing Accounts	· ·
01/01/2020	Blank, can set		(%)	
01/01/2020	Blank, can set		(%)	
01/01/2020	Blank, can set		[%]	
01/01/2020	Blank, can set		(%)	
23/12/2019	None allowed		%	
01/01/2020	Blank, can set		%	
01/01/2020	Blank		%	
01/01/2020	Blank		%	
01/01/2020	Blank		%	
01/01/2020	Blank		%	
	Blank		%	•
	<ul> <li>Effective Date 01/01/2020</li> <li>01/01/2020</li> </ul>	1978 POLE TRAILER           Image: state	I978 POLE TRAILER           Show Source Legend           Is (Loaded 79 records)           Effective Date 01/01/2020         Source Blank, can set         Expense Account (default accounts displayed in bold)           01/01/2020         Blank, can set	IP978 POLE TRAILER         Show Source Legend         Show Source Legend         Its (Loaded 79 records)         Effective Date 01/01/2020       Source Blank, can set       Expense Account (default accounts displayed in bold)       Billing Accounts         01/01/2020       Blank, can set       %       %       %       %         01/01/2020       Blank, can set       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %       %

The Billing Unit Accounts frame allows you to define Expense and Revenue Account information on Billing Items for a particular unit. This frame displays all of the accounts that have been associated with the unit along with those accounts' effective dates and billing items.

## **Billing Closed Work Order Fees**

Module(s): Billing, Workflow Management

SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE	FIND RELATED V
Closed Work Order Fee	
-Location Information	
Code: FM FM Parking Location	Status: Active
Default Job Coding	
01-0PM-PMF REPAIR PMF	
Visit Reason: P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P	
Fee Vendor: 123 TEP - 123adr	
Fee Type: Part	
Cost Computation Percent Charged: 50.00 % Not To Exceed: \$100.00	

The Billing Work Order Fees frame allows you to define special work order fees that can be charged by Maintenance Location. When a work order is closed, a new job can be automatically added to the work order to reflect shop fees, environmental charges, a flat overhead or some other single charge.

These special fees will be applied to each Work Order on the commercial tab at the specified maintenance location once the work order is completed and closed. System Flag 1172 must be set to 'Y' to use this functionality.

## **Billing Fixed Charges**

Module(s): Billing

Billing Items (L	lling Items (Loaded 23 records)									
Bill Item	Description	Limit	Taxable							
2738	Fixed fee - 100	\$100.00								
ADMIN	Administrative fee	\$5,000.00								
ADMINFEE	Administartion Fee	\$50.00								
CAR WASH	Car Wash - With Space	\$5,000.00								
CARWASH	CarWash - No Space	\$5,000.00								
COMLEASE	Commercial Lease	\$1,000.00								
CT1	test1	\$283.00								
CT2	test2	\$274.00								
СТЗ	test 3	\$12.00								
ENVOR	Environment Fee	\$20.00								
FUEL	FUEL	\$200.00								
FUELAVG	Avg Fuel \$ per Vehicle	\$100.00								
GHND	Greyhound tester	\$10,000.00								
GPS - SH	Sharon - gps	\$100.00								
INSURANCE	Insurance	\$500.00								
LABFEE	Labor Fee - Cerys Test	\$99,999.00								
LABOR	LABOR	\$300.00			•					

The Billing Fixed Charges frame allows you to define additional, customer-specific billing items. In order to make a billing item available for fixed billing usage, you must flag it on the Billing Items frame.

Each fixed charge is assigned a Billing Item, Description, and a Limit (maximum amount that can be charged per period).

# **Motor Pool Management**

To configure the motor pool functionality, please refer to *Motor Pool Application User Training Guide*. In addition to setting up a Motor Pool billing code, you must configure two additional frames.

## **Motor Pool Rental Class**

Module(s): Motor Pool

SAVE	SAVE UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND								
SAVE	ONDO	DELETE FIND							
<b>1</b> - <b>1</b>	tor Pool Rental Class								
viotor i	Pool Rental Clas	S							
Motor Pool For	Pool For Use on Units (Loaded 26 records)								
		Prep Duration	Units m						
Class	Description	Day(s)	Assigned						
1	test	0	28						
<u>1/2 TN</u>	1/2 ton pickup	0	23						
123	123	1234567	2						
2	another	0	3						
<u>3198</u>	FMVQA-3198 Tester	0	5						
<u>3610</u>	FMVQA-3610	0	1						
4966	4966 Tester	0	1						
ADR	Adam Test Class FRED	0	22						
AK	AK TEST	0	7						
CLS123	Test Class	0	3						
CMB1	Test	1	2						
CNMP1	Motor Pool Rental Class 1	0	2						
CNMP2	Motor Pool Rental Class 2	0	7						
CNMP3	Motor Pool Class 3	0	6						
DB STL	Style	0	1						
<u>FR</u>	Firing Range	0	3						
MCMPRC	MC Motor Pool Rental Class	0	3						
MP01	MP01	0	0						

The Motor Pool Rental Class frame allows you to create and maintain the rental classes for your Motor Pool. These Rental Classes help M5 manage fleet vehicle reservations based on total units in a class vs. how many are available in that rental class at the time of the reservation.

### Motor Pool Assign Unit

Module(s): Billing

SAVE	UNDO REFRESH DELETE FIND	
Motor Po	ool Assign Unit	
- Selection Criteria -	•	
Unit:	Year:	
Make:	Model:	
Class:	Location:	
Tag:	Color:	
Where:		
Both	▼	
Retrieve	Clear	
Motor Pool Assignm	ents (Units with Motor Pool Billing Code type) (Loading)	
Unit	Year/Make/Model	
00101	2009 C2500 4X4 SUBURBAN	
076076 1000B	2009 C2500 4X4 SUBURBAN	
10033	2009 C2500 4X4 SUBURBAN	
10033	2003 F350 4X4 STAKE BODY	
11330MP	2004 MDX 4X4 SUV	
123321	2017 FORD F150	

The Motor Pool Assign Unit frame displays all units that have a Motor Pool billing code. Assigning units to rental classes and locations is part of the setup process, but it also can be done on a periodic basis as you need to reassign units. Units that are reserved or out on rental cannot be reassigned to another rental class or location

This frame gives you the ability to easily assign things like Rental Class, Prep time, Location, Body Color, and Where Now (current location) or Ticket Number (if the unit is reserved to a Motor Pool Ticket).

A unit must be assigned a motor pool rental class and motor pool location before it can be rented. If System Flag 2070 is set to "Y", then the user can create free form unit numbers that are not real M5 units during the motor pool pickup process. These units are temporary units and are not retained after the motor pool ticket is closed.

# **Unit Availability Module**

To configure the Unit Availability functionality, refer to the Unit Availability User Guide.

## Availability Line Codes

#### Module(s): Asset Management – Unit Availability

	UNDO bility Line		DELETE FIND	
Line	Confirm Time	Line Time	Description	
AM	01:00:00	03:00:00	AM LINE	
EARLY	01:05:00	02:05:00	EARLY SHIFT	
EVE	12:00:00	15:00:00	EVENING SHIFT	
PM	13:00:00	18:00:00	PM LINE	

Availability Line Codes are used to set up the number of times throughout the day that a user can check available units in the fleet. It also sets the earliest time that the confirmation counts can be made for that line.

These codes are used on the Availability Requirements frame. At least one line needs to be defined in order to use the Unit Availability Module.

For example, if 8:00 am is early morning rush, a line is inserted in the frame to allow the user access to the units' availability process. If you have not previously considered using unit availability functionality, now might be a time to evaluate the additional customer support this module could provide for your mission critical user departments.

## Availability Disposition Codes

Module(s): Asset Management – Unit Availability

	SAVE UNDO RE	FRESH DELET	E	FINI
٩va	ilability Dispos	sition Coo	des	
Disposi	tion Codes (Loaded 6 records)			
Code	Description	Disabled		
0	No Disposition			
1	Available			
2	OOS Onsite Priority A			
3	OOS Onsite Priority B			
4	OOS Offsite			
9	QA Chg Test for 9			
				•

Availability Disposition Codes are one-character codes assigned to Availability Status Codes for reporting purposes. You can create up to ten Availability Disposition Codes.

Codes 1 and 4 are hard coded in the system and cannot be changed. Many reports and query frames rely on these codes. The Description can be change, but 1 is normally 'Available' and 4 is 'Offsite'.

An example might be that the unit could have a status code of minor repair and assigned to a disposition code of 1 which means that the unit is available, if needed.

## Availability Status Codes

Module(s): Asset Management – Unit Availability

Status Coo	le Maintenanc	e (Loaded 15 records)			
Status	Disposition Code	e Description	Wait For Mate Flag	Disabled	<b>^</b>
AAA	1	Avail Code AAA - Disp = 1			
AIN	1	Available If Needed			
AVL	1	Available			
BBB	1	Avail Code BBB Disp = 1			
EXP	2	express			
MRR	2	Minor Running Repairs			
NEW	4	new test			
OFF	1	Offsite			
00S	3	minor repair			
OPS	3	major repair			
OSC	3	Out Of Service			
VEN	3	Vendor			
VOR	3	VOR			
WFM	3	Wait For Mating			
WFP	3	Waiting For Part			
					-

The Availability Status Codes frame allows you to create and maintain a set of codes that indicate a unit's current availability. The 3-character Status Code includes an Availability Disposition Code and is a critical component of the Unit Availability Module.

## Availability Requirements

Module(s): Asset Management – Unit Availability

SAVE	UNDO	REFRESH	DELETE	FIND
Availabi	lity Rec	quireme	nts	
- Requirement Info	rmation —			
Operational Ent	ity:			
Operational Cla	SS:			
Operational Line	e:			
Line Time:				
Effective Date:	0			
Quantity Require				
E-Mail Address:				

The Availability Requirements frame is used to designate the number of units required (by class) for a particular entity at a specific time.

# **Updates**

Release	Section	Description
23.2	Holiday Calendar	Updated image to show the new Location Group field.
24.0	M5 System AdministrationFuel ManagementBilling ModuleMotor Pool ManagementUnit Availability Module	Updated the reference file title names.